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Mediobanca International (Luxembourg) S.A.
Head Office: 14, Boulevard Roosevelt, L-2450 Luxembourg,
Mediobanca Banking Group
Share capital: € 10,000,000 fully paid up

FINANCIAL SITUATION AT 30 JUNE 2011
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Bank’s results for the twelve months under review show a net profit of €36,1m (30/06/10: €35,3m).
This improvement reflects a 5,3% increase in total income, from €49,2m 1o €51,8m. Main income items
performed as follows:

» Inlcrest income shows an increase of 21,2%, from €28 8m to €34, 9m, involving in particular the
area of corporate and investment banking (CIB) due to a combination of higher gross retums and
reduced funding costs, despite the uncertainty and the volatility which are still marking the
scenano;

* nel fee and commission income decrease by 9%. from €17.8m to €16,2m, due to a slight drop in
lending activity.

On the balance-sheet side, loan and advances to customers remained substantially stable from €3.856m up
to €3.863m as a result of the sluggish demand, while notes worth a total of €118m from €733m were
issued against the Bank's Medium Term Notes Programme and €2.172m from €2.483m were issued
against its Short Term Programme.

Significant cvents that have taken place during the twelve months under review include:

o In May 2011 Standard & Poor’s cut its raling outlook for Italy Lo ncgalive [rom stable, ciling
weak growth prospects and increasing difficulties to slash its debt;

¢ In December 2010 the Basel Committce issue a reform package to strengthen global capital and
liquidity rules with the goal of promoting a more resilient banking scctor. The objective of the
reforms is to improve the banking sector’s abilily Lo absorb shocks arising from financial and
economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spillover from the financial sector
to the real economy.

« The Foreign Account Tax Cempliance Act (FATCA), enacted in 2010 as part of the Hiring
Incentives to Restore Employment (HIRE) Act, is an important development in U.S. efforts to
combat tax evasion by U.S. persons holding investments in offshore accounts. Under FATCA,
U.S. taxpayers holding financial assets outside the United Statcs will report those assets Lo the
IRS. In addition, FATCA will require foreign financial institutions to report dircctly to the IRS
certain information about financial accounts held by U.S. taxpayers. or by foreign cntities in
which U.S. taxpayers hold a substantial ownership interest. However the FATCA law brings
problems to financial players worldwide due to its very broad scope and close timeline for
implementation (with an effective date of 1 January 2014).

DEVELOPMENT IN CAPITAL MARKETS

In 2010 industrial multinationals saw a marked recovery in their revenues, which rose 15.2%. This
phenomenon invelved both North America (up 13.8%), and in more pronounced fashion Europe (up
15.4%). The growth was even more aggressive in Russia/Asia (27.6%) and the “rest of the world” -
chiefly Africa and South America — where it reached 20.5%. In Europe and North America sales in 2010
were not far off the levels seen in 2008, between 5% and 7% beclow them. In Russia‘/Asia the buoyant
performance in 2010 offset the slight downturn seen in 2009 and took revenues o approx. 25% above the
level reporled in 2008, Profits have on average been realigned to pre-crisis levels. The recovery in salcs
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volumes in 2010 was driven largely by the energy industry, boosted by the increase in crude oil prices (up
approx. 29% in dollar terms). However, manufacturing activities showed better profitability (measured in
terms of ROE), and in both Curope and Asia a better trend in terms of margins as well. The
manufacturing sectors which showed the highest growth were, in Europe, tyres and cables (2010 total
sales up 25%), chemicals (up 20%), iron and steel and automotive (up 16%); while less buoyant were
food (up 6.3%) and beverages (up 2.3%), cement (up 3%) and pharmaceuticals (up 6%).

North America Europe Russia/Asia
Manufacturing Manufacturing Manufacturing
5 :
Energy industry nergy industry Energy mdustry

Chg. % 2010/2009

Total sales 235 10.4 24.6 11.4 325 223
EBIT 52.0 353 38.7 47.7 333 6l.5
Current profit 54.0 41.7 40.3 70.8 36.9 70.3
ROE (as %) 07 25.1 16.0 8.9 194 20.5

Source : R&S — Multinationals financial aggregates (201))

The recovery in sales volumes in 2010 went alongside a strengthening in the capital structure, as a result
of strong growth in net equity and slower growth in borrowings (which actually fell in Europe). The
North American multinationals are the best capitalized and least indebted, with a debt/equity ratio of 0.4,
compared with 0.6 for the European firms. The size of the cash pile is also considerable, part of which
derives from fund-raising activity on markets with historically low growth rates: cash and cash
cquivalents account for 3% of the total assets and 70% of the net debt of the North American
multinationals, and 9.4% and 38% respectively for the European groups. The Russian/Asian
multinationals are also very solid, where the enerpy industry is very important. Capital spending
recovered everywhere, bul morc so in North America than in Europe (7.9%. versus 3.1%), as did staff
levels (4%, versus 0.6%).

North America Lurope Russia/Asia
Chg as%  as%of Chg as%  as%of Chg.as %  as %of
of 2009  total assels of 2009 total assets of 2009 (otal asscts

Net equity 10.4 418 14.7 39.0 13.6 60.2
Net debt 23 17.7 -3.1 247 39 179
Cash and equivalents 10.7 12.3 14.6 94 10.0 9.8
Investments 7.9 4.2 3.1 4.7 219 10.8
Debt/equity ratio 04 0.6 0.3

Nowrce : R&S — Multinationals financial uggregates (2011)

The manufacturing multinationals were slightly more fragile. The growth in total sales (9.3%) was below
the European average (11.4%) and below the average for Germany (17.6%) and France (11.8%). The
improvement in margins, too, was less impressive (EBIT up 30.3%, compared with a European average
of 47.7%) and account for a lower proportion of total sales (5.4% in Italy, versus a European average of
10.5%). Net profitability is approximately one-quarter of that posted by the European companies as a
percentage of total sales, and less than half in terms of net equity (ROE). The financial structure of Italian
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multinationals continues to feature a higher use of borrowing, with debt equal to 1.2x net equity (0.7x
being the European average).

The trends seen in 2010 were consolidated in the first three months of 2011, with total sales increasing by
11.7% (not far off the 15% recorded for FY 2010). Eurvpe again scems more buoyant: up 17.2%,
compared with 13.4% in North America. Margins as a percentage of total sales also held up at 2010:
EBIT reached 12% of total sales in Europe (11.4% in FY 2010) and 16% in North America (13% in FY
2010% net profit stood at 8% of total sales in Europe (7.4% in FY 2010) and 10% in North America
(9.5% in FY 2010). The sectors which saw the highest growth in sales were: food (up 25.3% on 1Q
2010), energy (up 24.4%), tyres and cables (up 19.8%) and iron and steel (up 17.5%). There was a slight
increase in mechanical engincering (up 2.3%), while electronics saw a reduction in sales (down 1.4%).
The financial structure continues to strengthen versus cnd-2010, with net debt reducing again in relation
to net equity.

*EK

The international banking system ended 2010 with a slight increase in revenues. marginally higher in
Europe (up 4.6%) than in the United States (up 1.6%), which was accompanied by a drastic reduction in
loan loss provisions (down 31% and 41% respectively), and allowed current profit to grow by 90% in
Europe and to treble in the United States. A reduced contribution from extraordinary items (with a
strongly negative balance in the United States) and the upturn in tax charges kept growth at the net profit
level down to 37% in Europe and 47% in the United States.

Furope United States
Chg. % 2010/2009
Revenues 4.6 1.6
Loan losses -30.7 -40.6
Current profit 88.3 226.3
Net profit 37.1 46.8
ROE (us %) 7.2 45

Source : RES -~ Major international banks (2011)

Unlike the industrial companies, the banking multinationals remained at profitability levels which were
far below those prior to the crisis: current profit, which in 2010 stood at around 20% of total sales, is
approx. 10 percentage points fower than the [igures reported in the 2000-2007 period. Despite the
reduction in 2010, loan loss provisions, again as a percentage of total sales, were still some ten points
above the long-term average. The deleveraging process, which began in 2009, has taken the US banks to
multiples that are below their own historical average (approx. 15x), as with the European banks as wcll,
which have far higher readings (27x) due infer alia to their different accounting practices. The large
European banks show a higher weight of net bad debts, which represent 2.4% of loans and advances to
customers and 29% of tangible net equity. compared to 0.9% and 6.2% respectively for the US banks.
The latter. by contrast, show a higher exposure to illiquid financial assets (“Level 3 assets”). which
account for 53% of tangible net equity compared to 42% for the European banks. The turmoil on financial
markets does not appear to have led to a significant reduction in the cost/income ratio, which on both
sides of the Atlantic is in line with the pre-crisis period (64% in Europe, 59% in the United States). The
largest Italian banks at end-2010 showed a ROE that was significantly below the European average
(3.6%, compared wilh 7.2%), lower levels of leverage (21.5x, versus 27.5x), including as a result of their
higher concentration in traditional lending activities (loans and advances to customers account for 61.5%
of total assets, compared with the European average of 43.5%). Such asset composition is a disadvantage
in terms of regulatory capital (core tier 1 ratio 7.4%, against for the 10.2% European banks), a gap which
has been made up in part through the major recapitalizations completed in the first six months of 2011.
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The profile in terms of net bad debts as a percentage of total loans continues to be less satisfactory (6%,
compared with a European average of 2.4%) and also as a percentage of tangible net equity (81.6%,
compared with a European average of' 29.4%).

In May 2011 the international banking system was still substantially propped up by government aid
intervention. In FEurope the current aggregalc commitment between guarantees issued and
recapitalizations has been estimated al approx. €1.200bn, approx. €650bn of which by the UK
government. with over 170 banks involved. Almost €960bn in repay ments and waived guaraniees take the
original commitment to over €2,000bn. In the United States the total is $2.000bn, with repayments and
waived guarantees of just under $800bn. Most of the current exposure is accounted for by the two
agencies Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which have benefited from approx. $1,650bn in aid.

RESTATED PROFIT AND 1.OSS ACCOUNT

Profit and loss account has been restated in the customary way to provide the most accurate reflection of
the Bank s operations.

12 mths to 12 mths to Yo¥.
30/06/2011 30/06/2010 chg.
€m £m %

Net inlerest income 34,9 28,8 21,2%
Net trading income 0,7 2,6 -73,1%
Net fee and commission income 16,2 17,8 -9,0%
TOTAL INCOME 51,8 49,2 5,3%
Wages and salaries -0,9 -0.8 12,5%
Other administrative expenses -6,3 -1,5 320,0%
OPERATING COST -7,2 -2,3 213,0%
Leans impairment 0,4 -1,7 -123,5%
Provisions for other financial assets - -0,4 -100,0%
Other profit (losses} - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 45,0 44,8 0,4%
Fiscal provision -8,9 -9,5 -6,3%
NET PROFIT 36,1 35,3 2,3%

Net interest income — this item rose by 21,2%. [rom €28,8m to €34,9m due to increasing spreads realized
on the structured finunce and corporate lending’s activity. During the year the Bank has observed stable
volume in Iending operations, increasing gross spreads on loans and advances to customers and lower cost
of funding mainly as a consequence of a more balanced and efficient proportion between short and long
lerm products.

Net trading income — this heading is made up of € 0,7m (€ 2,6m): dealing profits are € 2,9m (€ 1,9m)
realized in the majorily on buyback of notes issued by the Bank; -€ 5.8m (-€ 3,5m) reflect unrealired
mark-to-market valuations of financial instruments; whilc € 3,6m (€ 4.2m) reflect the net result of the
Bank’s currency exposure.
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12 mths to 12 mths to Y.0Y.

30/06/2011 30/06/2010 chg,
€m €m %
Dealing profits 2,9 19 52,6%
Mark to market as at reporting date -5.8 35 65,7%
Forex 3.6 472 -14,3%
NET TRADING INCOME 0,7 2,6 =73,1%

Net fee and commission income - this item, still driven by corporate business, decrease by 9% from €
17,81 to € 16,2m due to a slowdown in contribution given by lending transactions (down 15,3% from €
17m 10 € 14.4m) which has been only partially offset by the increase of commissions realized on capital
market transactions (up 45%, from € 0,9m 10 € 1.4m).

12 mths to 12 mths 1o Y.o.Y.

30/06/2011 30/06/2010 chg.

€m €m %o
Nel lending fees: 14,4 17,0 -15.3%
- Loans and advances rec (+) 360 47,3 -22.6%
- Loans and advances pay (- -21.0 -30,4 -30,8%
- Guarantees given rec (1) ns 0.4 113,0%
- Guaramntees received pay (-) =21 -4 473,9%
Other fees (+) i.7 0,9 84,6%
Other fees (-) 04 0,0 0,0%
Net fee income 15,7 17.9 -12.2%

Operating costs — this ilcm rose by 213%, from € 23m to € 7,2m, chiefly duc Lo the revision and renewal
of service agreements with the Parent Bank; the various components have performed as follows:

- wages and salaries totaled € 0.9m (€ 0,8m), during the fiscal year the staff number remained stable;

- other costs amounting 0 € 6,3m (€ 1,5m) reflect both the increasing volume of business managed by the
Bank and the mentioned renegotiation of contracts and service agreements which has been carried out
during the exercisc.

Impairment of loans and advances — from a negative impact of € 1.7m (which was corresponding to the
first time provision recorded in the previous (iscal year) the Bank has registered a positive impact of €
0,4m which mainly reflects a decrease of direct credit risk’s exposure (which in terms of cash exposure,
excluding financial guarantees and commitments, passed from € 535.8m to € 442 6m); the majority of
loans and advances remains covered by financial guarantees issued by the Parent Bank or public
Agencies.
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RESTATED BALANCE SHEET

30/06/201 1 30/06/2010 Y.0.Y. chg.
€m €m %

Net treasury investments -308,2 957 4 -132,2%
Loans and advances 4.081 4.076,7 0,1%
Tangible and intangible assets - - -
Other assets 9 1317 -93,2%
TOTAL ASSETS 3.7818 5.165.8 -26,8%
Funding 3.5391 4.850,7 -27.0%

of which: debt securities in issue 1.5533 24915 =37.7%
Other liabilities 40 148.6 -73,1%

of which. tax liabilities 308 146 -78 9%
Net equity 166.5 131.2 26,9%
Profit 36,2 353 2.5%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 37818 5.1658 -18,2%

Net treasury investments — the itcm dccreases fTom € 957,4m to -€ 308.2m and includes:
- financial assets held for trading which decreasc by 6% from € 995,5m to € 936,4m mainly duc o
the redemption of some fixed income securities;
~ net application in treasury funds such as repos, time deposits, etc. which decrease from -€ 445, 7m
to € 2.483.6m boosted by medium term funding time deposits which passes (tom -€ 323,3m to €
1.202,4m;
— negalive value adjustments to derivative contracts which decrease from € 116.8m (o € 221 3m.

Loans and advances — this item is stable compared to the previous exercise and has registered a 0,1%
increase from € 4.076.7 1o € 4.081m. Credit strategy is managed as part of the broader ALM pracess; the
portfolio is constantly analyzed in order to maintain the accurate balance in terms of risks’ exposure.
Specific reports are generated and reviewed by managemeni to ensure the achievement and the contro] of
the Bank’s loan strategy which is constantly focused on long term credit performance and total return.
The goal is adding value through a disciplined approach to credit selection by investing in best risk-
weighted opportunities and maintaining the right balance in terms of exposure to markets, geographical
areas, industrial sectors, ratings and currencies.

Maost of loans are covered by financial guarantees issued by the Parent Bank or public Agencies, while at
the reporting date the Bank has a direct cash exposure for € 442,6m.

In a scenario that remains challenging non performing loans decreases from € 11Im 10 € 89m
representing 2% of total loans. Since the balance sheet date, a financial guarantce on a nonperforming
exposure has been fully executed at the book value of € 11m permitting the Bank to recover the entire
position without any loss; nonperforming loans at the reporting date are fully covered by financial
guarantees.

Other assets — this item decreases by 93% from € 131,7m to € 9m due to the writc-olf of deferred tax
assets which has followed the assessments received from the Tax Authority during the fiscal year.

Funding — this item decreases from € 4.850,7m (0 € 3.539,1m mainly driven by the diminution registered
in long term funding debt securities (which passes from € 1.893.6m to € 1.354,8m), in short term funding
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Commercial Papers and French Cd (which passes [rom € 741.4m o € 282.2m), and in short term
overdrall on current accounts (which passes from €542, 5m Lo € 0.05m). The variation has becn partially
offset by the increase registered by loans due to Banks which rose from € 1.744,2m to € 1.926,6m.

Other liabilities — {his ilem decreases rom € 148,6m (o € 40m due 0 the write-off of deferred tax
liabilities which has followed the assessments received from the Tax Authority during the fiscal year.

Net equity — No dividends have been distributed during the exercise and the increase from€ 131.2mto €
166,5 is exclusively ascribable to the provisioning of 2010°s profits.

pp. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHATRMAN
(Mr. M. Di Carlo)
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MEDIOBANCA INTERNATIONAL (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

To the best of our knowledge, the annual accounts of MLEDIOBANCA INTERNATIONAL
(LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (the "Bank™) give a true and fair view of the assets. liabilities. financial position
and profit and loss of the Bank in accordance with applicable accounting standards. The Directors report
includes a fair view of (1) the Bank’s development, (II) its position, and {Tll)y a description of the
opportunities and risks relevant to the Bank that arose during the vear ended 30 June 2011.

Luxembourg, 9 September 2011

The Board of Directors

Massimo Di Carlo Luca Maccari Peter W Gerrard
Silvio Perazzini Stefano Pellegrino Federico Potsios

Danicl Cardon de Lichtbuer Alex Schmill
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Independent auditor's report

To the Board of Directors of
Mediobanca International {Luxembourg) S.A.
Luxembourg

Report on the annual accounts

Following our appointment by the Board of Directors, we have audited the accompanying annual
accounts of Mediobanca International (Luxembourg) 8.A,, which comprise the balance shest as at 30
June 2011, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual accounts in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Furopean Unian and for
such intarnal control as the Board of Diractors determines is nacessary to enable the preparation and
presentation of annual accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the "réviseur dentraprises agréé”

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual accounts based on our audit,. We conducted
our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing as adopted for Luxembourg by the
“Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier”. Those standards require thal we comply wilh ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
accounts are frea from material misstatermant.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the annual accounts. The procedures selected depend on the judgement of the “réviseur d'enfreprises
agrée”, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annusl accounts, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the “réviseur d'entreprises agréeé” considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual accounts in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinicn on the effectiveness of the entity’s Internat control. An sudit also inciudes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting polictes used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual accounts.

We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinicn.
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Qpinion

In our opinion, the annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of Mediobanca
International (Luxembourg) 5.A.as of 30 June 2011 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporiing $tandards as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union.

Report on other legat and regulatory requirements
The management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is consistent with the annual

acecounts,

FRNST & YOUNG
Société Anonyme
Cabinet da révision agréé

Christoph

Luxembourg, 9 Septembar 2011
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
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BALANCE SHEET

Assets 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
€ €

1. Cash and cash halances with Ccniral Banks 17.071.978 25.450.327
20. Finangcial assets held for trading 934.375.173 1.165.995 867
60. | Loans and advances to Credit Institutions ™ 855.553.860 1.097.940,298
70. | Loans and advances to Customers 3.881.812.149 3.846.652.299
80. Hedging derivatives 95311.388 153.308.960
120. { Property, plant and equipment 2008 3.474
130, | Tax assets - 123.465.021

a) current - -

bj deferred - 123.469.021
150. | Other asscts 9224710 13.956.117

TOTAL ASSETS 5.793.351.266 6.426.776.362

Liabilities and equity 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
€ €

10. | Amounts due to Credit Institutions 3.129.017.250 2.609.899.418
20. Amounts due to Customers 548.698.084 539.805.788
30, Debt securitics in issue 1.636.965.273 2.635.071.353
40, Trading liabilities 218.427.347 290.193.008
60. Hedging derivatives 16.193.251 33.243.193
80. Tax liabilities 28.865.079 144.196.217

al current 28.001.079 194567196

b} deferred K864.000 124.740.021
100 | Other Tiabilities 12.561.982 7.848.861
160. | Reserves 156.518.524 121.226.578
190. | Share capital 10.000.000 10.000.000
200. | Profit of the period 36.104.476 35.291946

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

5.793.351.266

6.426.776.362

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

™ 2010 figures have been reclassified to conform with changes 10 the currenl vear's preseniation for comparative purpose; for

details please refer to Part B - Section 4 - Reclassifications of prior year figures.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CAPTION 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
€ €
010. | Interests receivable and similar income 137.847 649 173.492.193
020 | Interests payable and similar charpes -105,735.282 -138.946.212
030. | Net interest income 32.112.367 34.545.981
040 | Fee and commission income 39.164.437 48.480.075
050_| Fee and commission expense -23 433358 -30.709.150
060. | Net fee and com mission income 15.731.079 17.770.925
080 | Net trading income/expense -15.474.763 -3.191.621
090. | Net hedging incomc/cxpense 195730 -65.562
100. | Gain or loss on disposal or repurchase of: 18.758.240 65917
al loans and recetvables . -
h) financial assets available for sale . .
<) financial assets held 1o marurity - R
d) finuncial liabilities 15.758.240 65.917
120. | Total income 51.322.653 49.125.640
130. | Value adjustments in respect of* 423898 -2.104.602
a) loans and receivables J¥3.932 -1717.023
b financial assets avaitable for sale -
¢} finuncial assets held to maturity - -
d} viher finuncial operations 39.966 -387.577
140. | Net income from the financial management 51.746.551 47.021.038
180. | Administrative expenses: -7.220.847 -2,311.139
a) personnel costs -949.998 -733.06]1
b} other admnistrative expenses -0.270.849 -1.576.098
200. | Value adjustments in respect of tangible assets -1.465 -17.668
220. | Other operating income/expense 436,858 126421
280. | Profit (loss) of the ordinary activity before tax 44.964.097 44.818.632
290. | Income tax on the ordinary activity -8.859.621 -9.526.686
340. | Profit (loss) for the year 36.104.476 35.291.946
350. ] Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
360. | Total comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax 36.104.476 35.291.946

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(kmount expressed in € k)

Amount
A. Cash flow from operating activities 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Operating activities 282.155 -410.437
- interest received 841.208 216.816
interest paid -553.291 -133 045
- net fee and commission reccived/paid -2.057 -491.500
cash payments 1o employees -597 -822
— other expenses paid -3.109 -1.886
2. Cash generated/absorbed by financial assets 686.195 5.296.033
—amounts due from customers -676.532 -1.668.945
— amounts due from banks: on demand 583.570 4.442220
- amounts due from banks: other 563.176 2.437.729
— other assets 215981 85.029
3. Cash generated/absorbed by financial liabilities -968.351 -4.885.595
— amounts due to banks: on demand 35.185 -4.849 393
-~ amounts duc to banks: other -547.300 191.728
-~ amounts due to clients -71.516 -2.014.195
— debt securities in issue -253.468 1.892.974
— other liabilities -131.252 -106.709
Net cash flow (outflow) from operating activities -1 1
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Cash absorbed by - -
— acquisitions of tangible assets - -
acquisitions of intangible assets - -
Net cash flow (outflow) from investing activities - -
C. Financing activities
issues/purchases of subordinated debts - -
Net cash flow (outflow) from financing activities - -
Net cash flow (outflow) during year -1 1
Amount
RECONCILIATION
30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Cash and cash equivalents: balance at 1 July 1 -
Total cash flow {outflow) during year -1 1
Cash and cash equivalents: exchange rate effect - -
Cash and cash equivalents: balance at 30 June - i

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
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PART A — CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate matters

Mediobanca International {Luxembourg) S.A. (the “Bank”) was incorporated under the name of
“Mediobanca International Limited” on 13 September 1990 under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, with its registercd office at Ugland House, South Church Street, P.O. Box 309 George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies.

On 21 December 2003, the shareholders of the Bank decided to transfer the registered office and
the principal establishment of the Bank from the Cayman Islands to the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and
declared that the Bank had accordingly adopted the Luxembourg nationality. In addition, the sharcholders
of the Bank decided to adopt the form of “Société Anonyine” and to change the name of the Bank into
Mediobanca International (L.uxembourg) S.A..

Nature of the Bank’s business

Mediobanca International (Luxembourg) S.A. is mostly focused on structured lending
transactions and the related activity of buying and selling on the secondary market.

Corporate lending: the business handies loans to corporate, which are gencrally medium-to-long
term, and are granted with a view to meeting our clients' needs for financing in relation either to specific
investments or to structural needs generated by growth. Toans may be disbursed to all kinds of corporate
clients, whether industrial or service-oriented, European or non-European, large or mid-size. Larger
facilitics may be syndicated to a select number of trusted banking counterparties or with the broader
involvement of international banks.

Structured finance: the business is focused on transactions involving a considerable degree of
financial leverage and limited recourse to the originator. Such deals usually arise as a result of industrial
or infrastructure capital spending Tequirements, or of acquisitions of listed or non-listed companies
launched inter alia with the backing of institutional investors. Such facilities are often structured in
complex fashion, including in terms of contracts and guarantees, in order to maintain the risk profile of
the transaction within limits that are acceptable to the banking community. Because of their size, such
loans are often syndicated.

Export finance: this chiefly involves providing financial suppott to Italian exporicrs of goods and
services to non-Italian counterparties usually located in emerging markets. It may take the form of
financing with the benefit of insurance covers and interest rate subsidies from SIMEST, SACE or other
Furopean export credit agencies. The structuring of these transactions, which are often part-syndicated to
other banking counterparties, goes hand-in-hand with advisory services provided to clients in respect of
commercial negotiations with government organizations granting the insurance cover and/or interest rate
subsidy.
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The Bank raises funds on international markets, via the issuance of medium-long term or short
term financial instruments under the terms of specific programs (Notes, Certificats de Dépét, Commercial
Papers) fully guaranteed by the Parent Company. Mediobanca S.p.A. guarantees a plafond of funding
which could be drawn in diffcrent ways (i.e. overdraft on current accounts, medium-long term loans,
money-market transactions) and provides as well treasury services.

Qutsourcing

Since inception, the Bank has outsourced a significant part of its activities to the Parent company
under the terms of a servicing contract.

Annual accounts
The Bank's financial year runs from 1 July to 30 June.

The annual accounts as of 30" June 2011 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
9" September 2011.

Parent company

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mediobanca Banca di Credito Finanziario S.p.A.
(hereafier “Mediobanca S.p.A.”), having its registered office in Piazzetta Enrico Cuccia n. 1. Milan, Italy.
The annuai accounts of the Bank are included in the consolidated financial statements of Mediobanca
S.p.A..

Mediobanca S.p.A. is the leading investment bank in Italy and helped for over 60 years clients
grow, offering high-quality advisory services and providing finance in all its various forms, from more
traditional bank credit to the most sophisticated solutions available on capital markets.
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PART B - ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Section 1

Statement of conformity with [AS/IFRS

The Bank’s annual accounts for the period ended 30 June 2011 have been drawn up in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting Standard (IAS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which were adopted by the European
Commission in accordance with the procedure laid down in Article 6 of Regulation CE 1606/02 issued by
the Furopean Council and Commission on 19 July 2002

Section 2

General principles

The annual accounts comprise:

—  balance sheet;
— statement of comprehensive income;
— statement of changes in cquity;

cash flow statement (direct method);
— notes to the annual accounts.

All the statements have been drawn up in conformity with the general principles provided for
under JAS and the accounting policies illustrated in section 4, and show data for the period under review
compared with that for the previous financial period.

Section 3
Basis of preparation

The annual accounts arc prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments held
for trading and for derivatives concluded for hedging purposes, which are measured at fair value. The
carrying values of recognised asscts and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and
othcrwise carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair value attributable to the risks
that are being hedged.

The balance sheet, statcment of comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity arc
presented in Euro (€). Cash flow statement and notes to the annual accounts are presented in € k unless
otherwise stated.

The preparation of annual accounts in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union
requires management lo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense items. The estimates and associated
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assumplions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

‘T'he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the cstimate is revised if the revision aftects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Section 4
Accounting policies
New amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policics adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.
Amendments resulting from Improvements to IFRSs to the following standards did not have any impact
on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Bank:

¢ RS 2 Share-based payment.: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions effective 1
January 2010;

s IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised) and [4AS 27 Consolidated and Separare Financial
Statements {Amended) effective 1 luly 2009, including consequential amendments to IFRS 2,
IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 7, IAS 21, IAS 28, IAS 31 and IAS 39;

o 1AS 39 Financial instruments: Recagnition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items effective
1 July 2609;

s IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners effective 1 July 2009;

= IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Fquity Instruments effective 1 July 2010.

Improvements to IFRSs
Issued in May 2008

e IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations effective 1 January 2010,
Issued in April 2009

o KRS 2 Share-bhased Payment,

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

IAS 17 Leases;

1AS 38 Intangible Asseis;

1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
e [IFRIC 9 Reasscssment of Embedded Derivatives.
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Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Bank’s financial statements
are listed below. This listing is of standards and interpretations issued, which the bank reasonably expects
1o be applicable at a future date. The Bank intends to adopt those standards when they become effective.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Amendment)

The amended standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. It
clarified the definition of a related party to simplify the identification of such relationships and to
eliminate inconsistencies in its application. The revised standard introduccs a partial exemption of
disclosure requirements for government-related entities. The Bank does not expect any impact on its
financial position or performance. Early adoption is permitted for cither the partial exemption for
government-related entities or for the entire standard.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the 1ASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and
applics 1o classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. In subsequent phascs, the
Board will address impairment and hedge accounting. The completion of this project is expected in mid
2011. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will primarily have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Bank's financial assets. The Bark is currently assessing the impact of adopting IFRS
9, however, the impact of adoption depends on the assets held by the Bank at the date of adoption, it is
not practical to quantify the cffect.

IFRIC 14 Prepavments of a minimum funding requirement (Amendment)

The amendment to [FRIC 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
with retrospective application. The amendment provides guidance on assessing the recoverable amount of
a net pension asset. The amendment permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding
requirement as an asset. The amendment is expected to have no impact on the financial statements of the
Bank.

Improvements to IFRSs (issued in May 2010)

The IASB issued Improvements to IFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to its IFRS standards. The
amendments have nol been adopted as they become effective for annual periods on or after 1 January
2011. The amendments are listed below:

0 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
L TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
s IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The Bank, however, expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial
position or performance.
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Summary of significant accounting policy
Financial assets other than derivatives

I.oans and advances

These comprise loans to customers and banks which provide for fixed or otherwise determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and which cannot therefore be classified as available for
sale.

Loans and advances are booked on disbursement at a value equal to the amount drawn plus (less)
any income (expenses) directly attributable to individual transactions and determinable from the outset
despite being payable at a later date. The item does not, however, include costs subject to separate
repayment by the borrower, or which may otherwise be accounted for as ordinary internal administrative
costs. Repos and reverse repos are booked as funding or lending transactions for the spol amount received
or paid. Non-performing loans acquired are booked at amortized cost on the basis of an internal rate of
return calculated using estimates of expected recoverable amounts.

Loans and receivables are stated al amortized cost, i.e. initial values adjusted upwards or
downwards 1o reflect: repayments of principal, amounts writicn down/back, and the difference belween
amounts drawn at disbursement and rcpayable at maturity amortized on the basis of the effective interest
rate. The latier is defined as the rate of interest which renders the discounted value of future cash flows
deriving from the loan or receivable by way of principal and interest cqual to the initial recognition value
of the loan or receivable,

Loans and receivables are for managerial purposes classified in three different categories
depending on the borrower’s linancial situations:

- Performing: loans on which payments of interests and principal are iess than 90 days past due
and without any evidence of financial difficulties from the borrower” side.

- Non performing loans: loans that arc in default or close to being in default; a loan is usually
classified as nonperforming when payments of interests and principal are past due by 90 days or more, or
payments are less than 90 days overdue but there are reasons to doubt that payments will be made in full.

- Restructured loans: new loan that replaces the outstanding balance on an older loan with a
different financial structure that may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of
new conditions which have been usually rescheduled to accommodate a borrower in financial difficulty
and, thus, to avoid a default. Restructured loans are managed for reporting purposes as non performing
exposures; management continually reviews the position to ensure that ail criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur,

Individual items are tested at annual and interim reporting dates to show whether or not there is
evidence of impairment. Items reflecting such cvidence are then subjected to analytical testing, and, if
appropriate, adjusted (o reflect the difference between their carrying amount at the time of the impairment
test (amortized cost), and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective intercst rate. Future cash flows are estimaled to take account of anticipated collection
times, the presumed value of receivables upon disposal of any collateral, and costs likely to be incurred in
order 1o recover the exposure. Cash flows from loans expected to be recovered in the short term are not
discounted.
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The original cffective interest rate for each loan remains unchanged in subsequent years, even if
new terms are negotiated teading to a reduction to below market rates, including non-interest-bearing
loans. The relevant value adjustment is taken through the comprehensive income.

If the reasons which brought about the loss of value cease lo apply, the original value of the loan
is recovered in the comprehensive income account in subsequent accounting periods up to the value of
amortized cost.

Accounts for which there arc no objective evidence of impairment, including those involving
counterparties in countries deemed to be at risk, are subject to collective tests. Loans are grouped on the
basis of similar credit risk characteristics, and the rclated loss percentages are estimated at the impairment
date on the basis of historical series of internal and external data. Collective value adjustments arc
credited or charged to the comprehensive income, as appropriate. At each annual and interim reporting
date, any write-downs or wrile-backs are re-measured on a differentiated basis with reference to the entire
portfolio of loans deemed to be performing at that daic.

Financial puarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the bank gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of
credit, guarantees and acceptances. Overall, the fair value of a financial guarantee is zero at the time a
conlract is issued, since for market” slandards the consideration received is gencrally equal to the value of
the obligation assumed. Guarantees given are recognized in the off balance sheet (within “guarantees and
commitments”} at the nominal value, while premiums receivables are recognized over the life of the
assets in the financial stalement {within “other assets™) and in the statement of comprehensive income
(within “nct fee and commission income™). Subscquent to initial recognition, the Bank's exposure under
each puarantee is tested to show whether or not there is evidence of expenditure required to settle any
financial obligation arising as a result of the puarantee or any other evidence of impairment. Items
reflecting such evidence are then subjected to analytical testing, and, if appropriate, adjusted to reflect the
increase in the liability related to financial guarantee; accounts for which there are no objective evidence
of impairment, including those involving counterpartics in countries deemed to be at risk, arc subject to
collective tests. Financial guarantees are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics, and the
related loss percentages are estimated at the impairment date on the basis of historical scries of internal
and external data Collective value adjustments are credited or charged to the comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

Fair Value hierarchy

Financial instruments recognized at fair value arc classified, depending on the valuation
methodology, in three different levels.

Level 1: the fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets, such as shares, futures,
options, rights and bonds, is calculated by using directly the market prices recorded on the corresponding
trading markets or otherwise received from independent market data providers.

Level 2: the fair value of financial instruments classified as leve! 2 in the fair value hierarchy is
calculated by using standard valuation models calibrated to the market prices of liquid instruments or
market prices provided by brokers. The Middle Office - market data unit checks the validity and accuracy
of the market data and model parameters, with the support, among other things, of conscnsus instruments.
The Risk Management - model validation unit checks that the models function correctly and are
consistent with market practices. These instruments may be broken down as follows:




Linear interest rate and inflation instruments, such as deposits, asset swaps, IRS, inflation swaps,
CCS, FX swaps, FRA, repos, are constructed from the interest rate curves via standard bootstrap
techniques and interpolation based on the most recent fixings of interest rate and inflation indexes
and on the prices of short ratc futures, FRA, IRS, CCS, inflation futures and inflation swaps. The
inflation curves are also supplemented with information derived from macro-cconomic analysis
of short-term prospects and historical analysis of seasonality cffects. These curves are then used
to make a projection of future cash flows dependent on interest rate and inflation indexes. Lastly,
these flows are discounted using a discount factor, which allows the fair vahie of lincar interest
rate and inflation instruments to be calculated in line with the market.

Non-linear interest rate and inflation instruments, such as caps/floors, caps/floors on inflation and
Furopean swaptions: volatility surfaces arc constructed using standard lechniques based on the
market prices of caps/floors and swaptions at standard maturities and strike prices, and using
interpolation technigues a suitable volatility is constructed for the unlisted instrument or its
components. This volatility combines with the interest rate curve to determine the fair value using
standard models.

Forex instruments such as FX-spot/forwards, FX swaps and FX plain vanilla options: for the
simpler instruments it is sufficient to use the interest rate curves to discount future flows and
convert these flows in the relevant foreign currency to the equivalent amount in Euros using the
market exchange rate. For more complex instruments such as options, volatility surfaces are
constructed using the market prices of listed FX options at standard maturities and strike prices
using classical interpolation models and methods. These volatility surfaces, along with the
interest rate curves and market exchange rates, are used o calculate the fair value of the unlisted
plain vanilla FX options in line with the market.

Fquity instruments such as forwards, cquity swaps, and plain vanilla options on equities and
mdexes: volatility surfaces are constructed from the market prices of listed options using standard
techniques, and dividend curves are constructed based on cstimates of dividends supplied by
external providers and compiled internally. The interest rate curves and the dividend curves,
together with the current market value of the underlying asset, allows a projection to be made of
the underlying assel’s future valve. This projoction, along with rhe volatility surface for the
options, using standard market models allows these financial instruments to be valued in line with
the market.

Credit instruments such as credit default swaps on individual names or credit indexes, or bonds
with no liquid market: default probability curves arc constructed based on the prices of the CDS
at various maturities or on bonds and estimates of rceovery rates received from external
providers. These probability curves, together with the interest rate curves, allow the fair value of
the credit default swaps and bonds to be calculated using models in line with market prices.

Level 3: the fair value of financial instruments classified as 3 in the fair value hierarchy is

calculated in the same way as for level 2 instruments, with the difference that some model parameters are
not directly observable on the market, and are therefore calculated internally using appropriaie
methodologies. In many cases, for this calculation historical data are analyzed or comparable underlying
instruments are used. As for level 2, the model parameters are checked by the Middle Office - market data
unit and the models themselves by the Risk management - mode! validation unit. The fair values thus
calculated, if neccssary, are then adjusted to reflect the untcertainty of the model or the specific market
data. Examples of model paramelcers calculated internally are as follows:

Equily options: the market prices of the options do not allow a volatility surface to be constructed
beyond a certain expiry. If it is necessary to value an option beyond this limit, extrapolation
methods are applied, supported by analysis of the volatility surfaces of other comparable
underlying assels {peers).
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e Equity options on baskets: slandard market models are used, along with cstimated correlation
data. For this estimate, historical analyses of yields on the basket’s components are used. taking
into consideration the historical difference between listed and historical correlation.

Held for trading financial assets

These comprise debt securities with fixed or otherwise determinable payments and fixed
maturities. At the settlement date such assets are recognized at fair value not including any transaction
expenses or income directly attributable to the asset concerned, which are taken through the
comprehensive income.

After initial recognition they continue to be measured at fair value, if the assets suffer impairment,
they are written down to their current value.

Gains and losses upon disposal and/or redemption and the positive and negative effects of changes
in fair value over time are reflected in the comprehensive income under the hcading Net trading
income/expense.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where:

—  the rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

—  the Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
o pay them in full without material delay (0 a third parly under a “pass-through”
arrangerment; or

— the Bank has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from the assct and cither {a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

Where the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assct and has neither
transferrcd nor Tetained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised (o the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be
required to repay.

Liffective from | July 2008, the Bank may reclassify, in cerfain circumstances, non-derivative
financial assets out of the held for trading category and into the available-for-sale, loans and advances, or
held-to-maturity catcgories. From this date it may also reclassify, in certain circumstances, financial
instruments out of the available-for-sale category and into the loans and advances calegory.
Reclassifications are recorded at fair value at the date of reclassification, which becomes the new
amortised cost.

The Bank may reclassify a non-derivative trading asset out of the held for trading category and
into the loans and advances category if it meets the definition of loans and advances and the Bank has the
intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the [oresceable future or until maturity. If a financial
asset is reclassified, and if the Bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result
of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate from the daic of the change in estimate.
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For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale calegory, any previous gain or loss
on that assct that has been recognised in equity is amortised to comprehensive income aver the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired then the amount recorded in equity is recycled
1o the comprehensive income.

Reclassification is at the election of Management, and is determined on an instrument by
instrument basis. The Bank did not reclassify any financial instrument as of 30 June 201 1.

Financial liabilities other than derivatives

The Bank classifies its financial liabilitics other than derivatives in the following category:
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

ilities measured at amortised co

Financial li

These include the items Due to banks, Due to customers and Debt securities in issue less any
shares bought back.

Initial recognition takes place when funds raised are coilected or debt securities are issued, and
occurs at fair value, which is equal to the amount collected net of transaction costs incurred directly or
indirectly in connection with the liability concerned. Thereafter liabilitics are stated at amortized cost on
the basis of the original effective interest rate, with the exception of short-term liabilities which continue
to be stated at the original amount collected.

Derivatives embedded in structured notes are stripped out from the underlying contract and
recognized at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized through the profit and loss
account.

Financial labilities are derccognized upon expiry or repayment, even if buybacks of previously
issued notes arc involved. The difference between the liabilities carrying vahe and (he amount paid o
repurchase them is recorded through the profit and loss account.

When an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an cxisting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
maodification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments or a financial guaranlee contract. Gains and losses on
investments held for trading are recognised in the comprehensive income. The Bank assesses whether
cmbedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts when the Bank becomes party
to the contracl. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that si gnificantly
meodifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are restated at fair value. The method of recognizing the
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resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivatives are designated as hedging instruments,
and if so, the nature of the items being hedged.

Derivatives are carried as asscts when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair
value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate dcrivalives
when their economic characteristics and risks arc not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through comprehensive income. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair valuc recognized in the comprehensive income.

(1 Trading

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments. The
gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value of trading derivatives is recognised immediaicly in the
comprehensive income.

(i) Hedging

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and
interest rate risks arising from operational. financing and investment activities. Where there is a hedging
relationship between a derivative instrument and a related item being hedged. the hedged instrument is
measured at fair value. The treatment of any resulting gains and losses is set out below.

A hedging relationship exists where:

— atthe inception of the hedge there is formal documentation of the hedge;

— the hedge is expected to be highly effective;

— the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured;

—  the hedge is highly effective throughout the reporting period; and

—~  for hedges of a forecasted lransaction, the transaction is highly probable and presents an
exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect net profit or loss.

Fair valuc hedge

Where a derivalive financial instrument hedges the exposure to changes in the fair value ol a
recognised asset or liability, the hedged item is stated at fair valuc in respect of the risk being hedged.
Gains or losses on re-measurcment of both the hedging instrument and the hedged item are recognised in
the comprehensive income. These amounts are included in the caption “Net hedging income/expense”™.

Cash flow hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the exposure to variability in the cash flows of
recognised assets or liabilitics (or homogeneous groups/portfolios thereof) or anticipated transaclions or
firm commitments, the effective part of any gain or loss on re-measurcment of the hedging instrument is
recognised directly in equity. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised in the comprchensive
income.
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When a hedged anticipated transaction or firm commitment results in the recognition of an asset
or liability, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is removed from
equity and included in the initial measurement of the assct or liability. Otherwise the cumulative gain or
loss recognised in cquity is transferred to the comprehensive income at the same lime that the hedged
transaction affects comprehensive income and included in the same line item as the hedged transaction,

When a hedging instrument or hedge relationship is terminated but the hedged transaction is still
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity remains in equity and is recognised in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the comprehensive income immediately.

As at 30 June 2011 and 2010 the Bank does not hold any cash (fow hedged transactions.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash balances on hand and short-term highly liguid
investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements

The Bank cnters into purchases (sales) of investments under agreements to resell (repurchase)
substantially identical investments al a cerlain date in the future at a fixed price. Investments purchased
subject to commitments to resell them at future dates are not recognised. The amounts paid are recognised
in loans to either Banks or customers. The advances are shown as collateralized by the underlying
sceurity. Invesiments sold under repurchase agreements conlinue (0 be recognized in the balance sheet
and are measured in accordance with the accounting policy of the category to which they relate. The
proceeds from the sale of the investments are reported as liabilitics to either Banks or customers.

The difference between the sale and repurchasc considerations is recognised on an accrual basis
over the period of the transaction and is included in the interest caption.

As at 30 June 2011 and 2010 the Bank did not enter into repurchase agreements or reverse
repurchase agreements.

Tangible assets

The Bank rccognises the cost of replacing part of a properly, plant and equipment item at
incurrence in the carrying amount of this item il that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs are recognised in the comprehensive income as an expense as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment {osses. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they arc located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Depreciation is charged to the comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of each part of an ilem of property, plant and equipment. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different uscful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant
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and equipment. Taken into consideration the nature of the Bank’s tangible assets. deprecialion ralc used is
20%.

The residual value, if not insignificant, and uscful lives are reassessed annually and adjusted, if
appropriate.

Other assets
Other assets are stated at cost lcss impairment.
Pension plans

The Bank operates a defined contribution pension plan. The contribution payable to a defined
contribution plan is in proportion to the services rendered to the Bank by the employees and is recorded as
an expense under Administralive expenses. The Bank has no defined benefit obligation regarding post
employee benefit to be recognised under IAS 19.

Provisions

Provisions arc recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and when it is probable thal an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Bank expects part or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separatc asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the comprehensive incomc net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is malerial, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific o the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

Other liabilities
Other liabilities are stated at cost.
Tax assets and liabilities
Income laxes are recorded in the comprehensive income, with the exception of tax payable on
items debited or credited dircctly to net equity. Provisions for income tax are calculated on the basis of
current, advance and deferred obligations. Deferred taxcs are calculated on the basis of temporary
differences — without time limits — between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax base.
Tax assets and liabilities are adjusted as and when changes occur in the regutatory framework or

in applicable tax ratcs, inter alia to cover charges that might arise in connection with inspections by or
disputes with the tax revenue authorities.
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“Day1” profit or loss

When the transaction price is different to the fair value from other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data
from observable markets, the Bank immediately recognises the difference between the transaction price
and fair value (a 'Day 1' profit or loss) in Net trading income/expense. In cases where fair value is
determined using data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model
value is only recognised in the comprehensive income when the inputs become observable, or when the
instrument is derccognised.

Offsetting

Financial assets and tiabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
the Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and the transactions are intended
to be settled on a net basis or realise the asset and settlc the Kability simultaneously.

Transfer and derecognition of financial assets

Financial asscts are derecognized as and when (he Bank is no longer entitled to receive cash flows
deriving from them, or when they are sold and the related risk and benefits are transferred accordingly.
‘Tangible and iniangible assets are derecognized upon disposal, or when an asset is permanently retired
from use and no further earnings or benefits are expected to derive from it.

Assets or group of asscts which are sold continue 10 be recognized if the risks and benefits
associaled with them (in the relevant technical form) continue to be attributable to the Rank. A
corresponding amount is then entered as a liability 10 offser any amounts received (as “other amounts
due” or “amounts due under repo lransactions™).

The main forms of activity carricd out by the Bank which require underlying assets to be
derecognized refer to ilems received as a part of the depositary Bank activity, the rcturn on which is
collected in the form of a commission; these items are not recorded as long as the related risks and
benefits continue to accrue entirely to the end-investor.

Impairment of finaneial assets

The Bank assesses at each halance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition ol the assel (an incurred “loss event™ and (hal loss event (or evenls) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Indicators of impairment include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

~ the Bank has granting to the borrower, for cconomic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty. a concession that the lender would not athcrwise consider;
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— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
—  the disappearance of an active market for that {inancial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as loans and advances), the Bank first assesses
whether objective cvidence of impairment exists individually for financial assels that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial assel, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be. recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows {excluding future expected credit 1osses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is acerued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purposc of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of “Tnicrest and similar income”. Loans
together with the associated allowance arc written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year,
the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. IT a loan has a variablc interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current cffective interest rate. [f the Bank has reclassified trading assets to loans and advances,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the new effective interest rate determined at the
reclassification date. The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial asscts are grouped on the basis
of the Bank's credit grading system, that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry,
geographical location, cellateral type, pasi-due status and other relevant factors (financial, budget and
business analysis are performed taking into consideration most recent data}.

Future cash flows of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated
on the basis of historical loss experience for asscts with similar credit risk characteristics. Estimates of
changes in future cash flows reflect changes in related observable data from ycar to year and certain
components of expected loss models (Probability of default, Loss Given Default. etc) are used to
determine the amount charged to comprehensive income,

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets arc reviewed at cach balance sheet date to determing
whether there is any indication of impairment. Tf any such indication exists, the assel’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the comprehensive income. The recoverable
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amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in usc,
the estimated future cash flows arc discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asscl.

Interest income and expenses

For all instruments measured at amoriised cost, interest income and expenses are recognised in the
comprehensive income as they accrue, taking into account the effective yicld of the asset and the liability
or an applicable floating rate. Interest income and cxpenses include the amortisation of any discount or
premium or other differcnces between the initial carrying amount of an interest bearing instrument and its
amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided by the Bank. Fee and
commission income i3 recognised when the corresponding service is provided.

Fee and commission expenses arise on financial services received by the Bank in relation to ils
lending activity. They are recognized when the corresponding service is received or on an accrued basis
for guarantecs received on loans.

Net trading incom e/expense
Gains and losses on financial instruments measurcd at fair value through profit or loss includes

gains and losses arising from disposals and changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held
for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Taxes
Income tax on the comprehensive income for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is rccognised in equity.
rh Current income lax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured al the

amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax ratcs and tax laws used
to compute the amount arc those that are enacted or substantively cnacted at the balance sheet date.

(h Deferred rax
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposcs.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temperary differences, exeept:
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—  where the deferred tax liability ariscs from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affcels neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

~ in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interest in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foresceable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differcnces, carry-forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits
and unuscd tax losses can be utilised except:

- where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction: that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interest in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and arc recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacled or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arc offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to scl
off current tax assets against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currency translation

The annual accounts are presented in euro (€), which is the Bank’s functional and presentational
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
curo are re-translated into euro at the exchange rale prevailing at the balance sheet date. The gain or loss
arising from such conversion is recorded in the comprehensive income.

Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.
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Reclassifications of prior year figures

For a comparisen to be meaningful and where necessary, certain prior year figures have been
reclassified to conform with changes to the current year’s presentation,

More specifically 2010 figures have been reclassified to conform with changes to the current year's
presentation for comparative purpose: in line with the approach applied by the Bank in the statement of
comprehensive income, where commission payable for guarantees received arc classified in the interest
margin as a component of the effective yield, the Bank has netted respective accrued commission
payables with the accrued interest receivables from loans and advances. The following table shows the

nature and the amount of reclassification related to the 2010 amounts:

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REOPENING BALANCE AS OF 1% JULY 2010

Assels 30/06/2010 Reclassification 01/07/2010
€ € €
60. Loans and advances to Credit Institutions 1.097.940.367 -69 1.097.940.298
70. Loans and advances to Customers 3.856.006.468 -9.354 169 3.846.652.299
Liabilities and equity 30/06/2010 Reclassification 01/07/2010
€ € €
100. | Other liabilities 17.203.100 -9,354.238 7.843 861

Related parties
Related parties are defined by IAS 24 as:
a) Individuals or cniities which directly or indirectly:

1. are subject 1o joint control by the Bank (including parent companics, subsidiaries and
associates);

2. own an interest in the Bank which enables them to exert a significant inflfucnce over it:
“significant influence” is presumed o exist in cases where an individual or entity owns a
sharcholding of more than 5% of the share capital of Mediobanca International
(Luxembourg) S.A., along with the entitlement to appoint at least one member of the
Board of Directors;

b} associate companies,
c) management with strategic responsibility, that is. those individuals vested with powers and
responsibilities. directly or indirectly, in respect of the planning, management and control of the activities

of the parcnt company. including directors and members of the statutory audit committee;

d) subsidiaries, companies controlled jointly and/or subject to significant influence by one of the
individuals referred to under the foregoing letter c), or in which the said individuals hold, directly or
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indirectly, a significant share of the voting rights or are shareholders or hold strategic positions such as
Chairman or Managing Director;

e) close relations of the individuals referred to under the foregoing letter ¢), that is, individuals who
might be expected to be able to influence or be influenced by them in their relations with Mediobanca
(this category includes pariners. children, partners’ children. dependents and partners’ dependents), and
the cntities controlled or controlled jointly or otherwise subject to significant influence by one of these
individuals, or in which they direcily or indirectly hold a significant share of the voting rights;

) staff pension schemes operated by the parent company or by any other cenlity related to it.
Section 5
Significant accounting estimates and judgement

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policics, managemenl makes estimates and
assumplions concerning the future and the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most
significant uses of judgment and cstimates are as tollows:

Going concern

The Bank's Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that the Bank has the resources lo continue in business for the foresecable future.
Furthermore, the Board of Directors is not aware of any material uncertaintics that may cast significant
doubt upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going concemn. Therefore, the annual accounts continue to
be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the balance sheet
cannot be derived (rom active markets, they are determined using a varicly of valuation techniques that
include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market
data where possible, but where observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish
fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility [or
longer dated derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for structured
securitics. The valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail in Section 4.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances on a monthly basis to assess
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement. In particular, management
judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining
the impairment loss. These estimates arc based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual
results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. Loans and advances that have been
assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually insignificant loans and advances
are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether
provision should be made due to incurred loss cvents for which there is objective evidence but whose
effects are not yet evident. The eollective assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio (such
as lovels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the effect of
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concentrations of risks and cconomic data. The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in
more detail in Section 4.,

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets arc recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Judgment is requircd to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets (hat can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategics.
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PART C—NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET
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ASSETS
Section 1
Heading 10: Cash and cash balances with Central Banks

1.1 Cash and cash balances with Central Banks (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
a) Cash 1
b} Demand deposit held at Central Banks 17.072 25 449
Total 17.072 25.450

Credit institutions established in Luxembourg are required to hold a minimum reserve with the
Luxembourg Central Bank. These deposits represent 2% of some of their liabilities. Compliance with the
reserve Tequirement is determined on the basis of the institations™ average daily reserve holdings over the
maintenance period, thus reserves of credit institutions can vary from one day to another (ollowing their
treasury management, the money market or their expectations in interest rates.

Mandatory reserve deposits with the central Bank are not uscd in the Bank's day (o day operations.
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Section 2

Heading 20: Financial assets held for trading

2.1 Financial assets held for trading: composition (in € k)

Item/Value 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A. Cash assets
1. Debt securities 122.640 282.651
1.1 Structured 5.100 — — - - —
1.2 Other debt securities 117.540 — 282651 —
2. Equitics — — — —
3. OICR units — 15428 — — — —
4. Loans and advances — — — — — -
4.1 Repos — — — — —
4.2 Others —
Total A 122.640 15,428 — 282.651 — —
B. Derivative products
1. Financial denvatives 364 882 98.993 414 351 141928
1.1 Trading — 301.895 — 322.044 —
1.2 Linked to FV options
1.3 Others 62.987 98.993 — 92.307 141.928
2. Credil derivatives 332.432 325.696 1.370
2.1 Itading —_— 263.726 — — 294.875
2.2 Linked to FV options — — — - — —
2.3 Others 68.706 —— — 30.821 1.370
Total B — 697.314 98.993 — 740.047 143.298
Total (A+B) 122.640 712.742 98993 282.651 740.047 143.298

The Bank uses the following hicrarchy for

instruments by valuation technique:

determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are ohservable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are

not based on observable market data.

For more information about [v hicrarchy please refer to part B “accounting policies™.
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2.2 Movemeniy on level 3 fair value hierarchy (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Opening balance 143.298 133.99¢
2. Increascs 1.923 11.025
2.1 Issues and purchascs 240 1.838
2.2 Transfers from other levels —
2.3 Other increases 1.683 9,187
3. Decreases 46.228 1.723
3.1 Sales and settlements 42.865 663
3.2 Transfers to other levels - —
3.3 Other decreases 3.363 1.060
4. Closing balance 98.993 143.298

No transfers between level 3 and level 2 have been registered in the year.

Gains or losses on level 3 financial instruments included in the profit or loss for the period are as follows
(in €X):

A. Unrealised gains | B. Unrealised losses Total
Total gains (losses) included in the
Lo . 6.341 -6.447 -106
comprehensive income for the period

As “level 37 financial instruments the Bank classifies equity options embedded both in structured notes
and in financial derivatives; impacts on the fair value of level 3 instruments of using reasonably possible
alternative assumptions is considered not significant,
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2.3 Financial assets held for trading: by borrower/issuer (in € k)

Item/Value

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

A CASH ASSETS
1. Debt securities
a. Governments and central Banks
b. Other public agencies
¢, Banks

d. Other issuers

122,640

122.640

282,651

24960
257.691

2. Equities
a. Banks
b. Other issuers
- insurances
- financial companics
- non-financial companies

- others

3. OICR units

4. Loans and advances
. Governments and central Banks
b. Other public agencies
c. Banks
d. Other entities

5. Impaired assets
a. Governments and central Banks
h. Other public agencies
¢. Banks
d. Other entities

6. Asscts sold but not derecognized
a. (overnments and central Banks
b. Other public agencies
¢. Banks

d. Other issuers

Total A

138.063

282.651

B. DERIVATIVE PRODUCTS
a. Banks

b. Customers

791.074
5.233

614.382
268.963

Total B

796.307

883.345

Total A+B

934,375

1.165.996
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2.5 Cuash assets held for trading (excluding assels sold but not derecognized/impaired assets).
movements during the period (m € k)

segfr'i’t‘ies Equities | OICK units ';‘51‘;::3 30/672011 | 3000672010
A. Balance at start of period 282.651 — — — 282.651 265.409
B. Additions 22.476 — 16.301 - 38777 42371
B.1 Acquisitions —_ — 16.300 — 16.300 10.780
B 2 Increases in fair valuc 12.790 12,790 17.855
B .3 Other increascs 9.686 — 1 — 9.687 13.736
C. Reductions 182.487 873 183360 25120
C.1 Disposals 18.807 351 19.358 7.904
C.2 Redemptions 108.502 — — — 108.502 14,786
C.3 Reductions in fair value 34176 — 322 — 34498 2.436
C 4 Transfers to other portfolios — —
.5 Other reductions 21.002 — — — 21.002 3
D. Balance at end of period 122.640 — 15.428 — 138.068 282.651
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Section 6

Heading 60 — Loans and advances to credit institutions

6.1 Louns and advances to credit institutions: composition fin €k)

Type of transactions/Value 30/06/2011 30/06/2010

I. Current accounts and demand deposils 512,729 655513
1.1 current accounts 419,848 571.684
1.2 stock lending deposits' 92.881 77.829
1.3 others deposits on demand — —

2. Term deposits 43,887 96.029

3. Other receivables: 298.938 346.398
3.1 amounts due under repo agreements - —
3 2 amounts due under finance leases — —
3.3 amounts due under stock lending transactions 76.007 92.097
3.4 other amounts due 222,931 254301

4. Debt sccuriics — —
4.1 structured
4.2 other debt securities

Total book value 855.554 1.097.940

Total fair value 855.553 1.097.173

Nore of the loans and borrowings of the Bank is hedged with financial instruments. The Bank does not book any

receivable under the terms of finance lease (1AS 17).

' As a part of the secunifies lending agrcement, the Bank has received cash as colfateral
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Section 7

Heading 70: Loans and advances to customers

7.1 Loans and advances to customers: composition (in € k)

Type of transactions/Value 30/06/2011 30/06/2010 7

- Current accounts — -
Amounts due under repo agreements — —
Loans 3.862.84] 3,846,652

W

. Credit cards, personal loans and salary - puaranteed finance — —
. Amounts due under finance leasing —
. Factoring —_
. Other transactions 18.971

@ =~ L A

. Debt securities —
8.1 structurcd —_
8.2 other debt securities -

9. Assets sold but not derecognized — —

Total book value 3.581.812 3.846.652

Total MNir value 3.870.128 3.805.977

™ For a comparison to be meaningful, 2010 figures have been reclassified as explained in Part B — Section 4 “Reclassification of
prior vear [gures™.
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7.2 Loans and advances to customers:

hy borrower/issuer (in €k)

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

Type of transactions/Value

Performing

Non-performing

Performing

Nun-performing

1. Dcbt securities:

a) Governments

b) Other public agencies

¢} Other issuers
- non-financial undertakings
- financial companies
- insurances

- other entities

2. Loans and advances to: 3.792.687 89.125 3.753.492 111160

2} Governmenis — — —_ —

b) Other public agencies — — — —

¢) Other issuers 3792 687 §9.125 3.753.492 111.160
- hon-financial undertakings 2.452.903 51.118 3.753.492 I11.160
- financial companies 1.339.784 38.007 —
- insurances — — — -
- other entities

Total 3.792.687 8%.125¢ 3.753.492 111160

© subsequent event: In August 2011 the Bank has executed the financial gwaranice on a nanperforming expasure at its book
value of € 1 1m, remarmng nom performing loans are jully covered by financtal suaramens.

™ Fora comparison to be meaningtiil, 2010 figures have been reclassified as explained in Part B — Scction 4 “Reclassification of

prior vear figures™.
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7.3 TLoans and advances fo customers: assets subject o specific hedging (in € k)

Type of transactions/Value

30/06/204 1

30/06/2010

1. Ttems subject to specific fair value hedges for:
a) interest rate risk
b) cxchange rate risk
c) credit risk

d) more than onc Tisk

371982
371.982

440.079
440.079

2. Ttems subject to specific cash flow hedges:
a) interest rate risk
b} exchange rate risk

¢) other

Total

371.982

440.079

The Bank does not book any receivable under the terms of finance lease (IAS 17).

G Eora comparison to be meaningful, 2010 figures have been reclassified as explained in Part B — Section 4 “Reclassification of

prior vear figurcs™.
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8.3 Hedging derivatives: by portfolio hedged and hedge type (in € k)

Fair Value Hedge

Cash Flow Hedge

30/06/2011 Specific
opemensiypeoftedsne Interest | Correney | ¢ ougit risk | Other risks (Generic Specific Generic
risk risk
1. Finuncial assets available-for-sale — — — — — _
2. Lending portfolio — — — — —_ —
3. Financial assets held-to-maturity — — — — — — —
4. Portfolio — — — — —
TOTAL ASSETS — — — — — — —
1. Amounts due to Banks/Customers 79.452 — — — —
2. Debt secunties in issue 15.859 — — — — —
3. Portfolio -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 95,311 — — — —_ — _—
TOTAL 95,311 — — — — — —
Fuir Value Hedge Cash Flow Hedge
30/66/2010 Specific
Operations/Type of hedging Interest Currency Generic Specific Generic
rigk risk Credit risk | Other risks
1. Financial assets available-for-sale - — — — — _
2. Lending portfolic — — — — —
3. Financial assels held-to-matunty — — — — — _
4. Portfolio
TOTAL ASSETS e — — — -_— — —
1. Amounts due to Banks/Customers 129802 — ~ — — —
2. Debt secunties in 1ssue 21795 2.712 — — — — —
3. Portfolio - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 150.597 2.712 — — — — —
TOTAL 150.597 2.712 — — —_ — —
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Section 13
Heading 130: Tax assets

13.1 Changes in deferred tax assets during the period (in € k)

Deferred tax assets 30/66/2011 30/06/2010
1. inttial amount 123.469 96.533
1.1 Initial amount 123,469 96.533
2. Additions 123,469
2.1 Deferred tax eriginating during the period 123.469

a) for previous years

b) due 10 changes in accounting policies —

¢) amounis writlen back — —

d) other addition — 123.469

2.2 New taxes Or Increascs in fax rates
2.3 QOther additions — —
3. Reducticns 123.469 96,533
3 1 Deferred tax reversed duting the period 123.469 96.533

a) amounts written off as unrecoverable
b) reverse to comprehensive income 123.469 96.533
c) due to changes in accounting policies
3.2 Reduction 1n tax rates - —

3.3 Other reductions — _

Total 123.469

The decrease in deferred tax provisioning is duc to a different approach followed by the Bank in defining
and calculating timing differences; such changes are consequent to the tax assessments reccived during
the fiscal year which led 1o a substantial re-definition and improvement of the approach to the reference
legislation.

The Bank wrote off the deferred taxes that have been provisioned during the previous exercises in order
to align the amounts on the basis of the new fiscal position.

Readers should bear in mind that the difference between June 2011 and June 2010 has to be considered in
its wholeness, regardless to deferred tax assets and liabilitics separately.
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Section 15

Heading 150: Other assets

15.1 Other assets (in€k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
- Withholding tax — —
- Value added tax — —
- Upftont premiums 2.058 7.476
- Commissions receivable 7.066 6.429
- Qther 10t 51
Total 9.225 13.956

Upfront premiums refer to pavments made on derivalives negotiated on the trading portfalio of the Bunk, which have been
capitalized and will be reversed on a prorate basis to the comprehensive income

Commissions recervable refer to amounts due from third parties in connection with the corporate lending and the depositary Bank

activilies.
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Liabilities
Section 1

Heading 10: Amounts due to credit institutions

1.1 Amounts due to credit institutions. composition {in € k)

T'ype of transaction/amounts 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Due to central Banks — —
2 Due to Banks 3.129.017 2 609 899
2 1 Current accounts and demand deposits 74.385 620.287
2.2 Term deposits 1.052.081 153.329
2.3 Borrowings 2.002 551 1.836.283
2.3.1Leasing & stock lending 75.975 92.097
2.3 2 Others 1,926,576 1.744 186
2.4 Amounts due under commitments to buy back own shares —
2.5 Other amounts due — —
‘Total book value 3.129.017 2.609.899
Total fair value 3.129.017 2.609.899

1.2 Breakdown of leading 10: “Amounts due to credit institutions” - subordinated debt

Subordinated liabilities included - under the heading Due to Banks — nominal amount of € 39.250.000
referring to subordinated debt assimilated to Tier2 capital; if Basel III's criteria will be maintained in the
final version, subordinated debt will be reclassified as Additional Tierl.

1.3 Amounts due to credit institutions: items subject to specific hedges (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010

1. Items subject to specific fair value hedges for: 155.727 187.673
155.727 187.673

a) interest rate risk

b} exchange ratc risk

¢) more than ane tisk

2. lHems subject to specific cash flow hedges for:

4) interest rale risk

b} exchange ratc nsk

c) other
Total 155.727 187.673

Items subject to micro fair value hedge are Schuldscheins subscribed by third credit institutions.
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Section 2
Heading 20: Amounts due to customers

2.1 Amounts due to customers: composition (in € k)

Type of transaction/amounts 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 18.546
2. Term deposits 452.065 467,129
3. Customers’ funds managed on a non-discretionary basis — —
4. Borrowings 78.087 72677
4.1 leasing 18.963 —
4.2 others 59.124 72.677
5. Amounts due under commitments to buyback own shares —
6. Liabilities in respect of assets sold but not derccognized — —
6.1 Amounis due under reverse repo agreements — —
6.2 Others —
7. Other amounts due — —
Total book value 548.098 539.806
Total fair value 548.698 539.806
2.2 Amounts due to customers: items subject to specific hedges fin € k)
30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Ttems subject to specific fair value hedges for: 59124 72.677
a) tnterest rate risk 56124 72.677
b} exchange rate risk —
c) more than one risk — -
2. ltemns subject to specific cash flow hedges for: — —
a) interest rate risk — —
b) exchange rate risk — —
¢) other — —
Tetal 59.124 72.677

Items subject to micro fair value hedge are Schuldscheins subscribed by non-financial corporate entities.
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Section 3
Heading 30: Debt securities in issue

3.1 Debt securities in issue: composition (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Type of transaction/amounts Book value Fair Value! Book value Fair Value

A. Listed securities 1.356.049 1.365.641 2,206.019 2 187729
1. notes 1.073.880 1.083.472 1.464.579 1.446.289
1.1 structured 898.456 907.293 955 856 935979

1.2 others 175414 176.179 508.723 510310

2. other securities * 282.169 282.169 741.440 741.440
2.1 structured — — —
2.2 others 282.169 282 169 741.440 741.440

B. Unlisted securities 280516 283.281 429.052 420349
1. notes 280916 283.281 429.052 420.349
1.1 structured 260776 260.816 290494 290.872

1.2 others 20,140 22.465 138558 125.477

2. other sccuntics — e — —_—
2.1 structured — — — —
2.2 gthers — — _ -
Total 1.636.965 1.648,922 2.635.071 2.608.078

! Fair value does not include issuer risk: if issuer risk was considered, the fair value of debt sccurities issued would reduce by
€ 31m approximately.
A “Certificats de dépdt” and commercial papers programs obtained the Step Market (short-term curo commercial paper) label.
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3.2 Debt securities: items subject to specific hedging (in € k)

Type of transaction/amounts 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
A Securities subject to specific fair value hedges 509.767 573.714
1. Interest rate risk 503.603 550.472
2. Carrency risk 6.164 23.242
3. Other risks —_ —
B. Securities subject to specific cash flow hedges — —
1. Interest rate risk - -
2, Currency risk —
3 Other risks — —
| Total 509.767 573.714
3.3 Debt securities: items measured atf amortised cost (in € k)
Type of transaction/amounts 306/06/2011 30/06/2010
A. Debt securities 845.029 1.319917
1. Structured 764.356 852972
2. Other 80.673 466,945
B. Other financial instruments 282169 741.440
1. Structured — —
2. Other 282 169 741.440
Total 1.127.198 _2.061.357
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Section 4

Heading 40: Financial liabilities held for trading

4.1 Financial liabilities held for trading: composition (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Type of transaction/amou nts Fv Fv
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

A. Cash liabilities -
1. Amount due to Banks — — —_ — — —
2. Amount due to customers — — — — - —
3. Debt securities — — e — — —
B. Derivatives instruments — 119.435 98.992 — 146 895 143 298
1. Financial derivatives —_ 90.319 98.992 - 117.327 141928
1.1 Trading derivatives — 27.653 — - 25020 —
1.2 Linked to FV option — —_ — — — -
1.3 Other - 62.666 98.992 — 92.307 141928
2. Credit denivalives — 29.116 — — 29.568 1.370
2.1 Trading denivatives -— 25.209 — — 15.033 —
2.2 Linked to 'V option — — — — — —
2.3 Other — 3.907 — — 14.535 1.370
Total — 119,435 98.992 — 146.895 143.298

The Bank uses the following hicrarchy for

instruments by valuation technigue:

determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs having a significant cffcct on the recorded fair value are

observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3: techniques using inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not

based on observable market data.

For more information about fv hierarchy please refer to part B “accounting policies™.




4.2 Movements on level 3 fair value hierarchy (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Opening balance 143.298 133.996
2. Increases 1,923 11.025
2.1 Issues and purchases 241 468
2.2 Transfers from other levels
2.3 Other increascs 1.682 10 557
3. Decreases 46.229 1.723
3.1 Sales and settlements 42 865 663
3.2 Transfers to other levels — —
3.3 Other decreases 3.264 1.060
4. Closing balance 98.992 143.298

No transfers between level 3 and level 2 have been registered in the year.

Gains or losses on level 3 financial instruments included in the profit or loss for the period are as follows

(in€ k)
A. Unrealised gains | B. Unrealised losses Total
Total gains (losses) included in th
gains (losses) ¢ 6.341 6.447 -106
comprehensive income for the period

As “level 3" financial instruments (e Bank classifies equity options cinbedded both in structured notes
and in financial derivalives; impacts on the fair value of level 3 instruments of" using reasonably possible
allernative assumptions is considered not significant.
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6.2 Hedging derivatives: by portfolio hedged/hedge type (in € k)

Hedged items Fair value hedges Cash flow hedge
Specific
Interest | Exchange { Credit

Risk rate risk Other Generic | Specific | General | 30/06/2011 | 30/06/2010
1. AFS Securities — — — — — — —
2. Loans and advances 4.502 — — — — — — 4.502 23.558
3. Financial assets Hm —_ — — — - — — —
4. Portlolio — — — — — -— — — —
TOTAL ASSETS 4.502 — e — — — — 4.502 23.558
1. Amounts duc — — — — — — — —_
2. Fmancial liabilitics 10.170 1.521 — — — — — 11.661 9.685
3. Portlolio — — —— — — — — — —
TOTAL
LIABILITIES 10.170 1.521 — — — — — 11.691 9.685
TOTAL 14.672 1.521 — — — — — 16.193 33.243
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Section 8
Heading 80: Tax liabilities

8.1 Tax liabilities: current tax liabilities (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Corporate income tax (IRC) 21.512 14.894
Municipal business tax {ICC) 6489 4,562
Other — —
Total 28.001 19.456

The Bank is liablc for all taxes to which the credit institutions are subject to in Luxembourg. The Bank
opts for the exoneration of the net wealth tax charge of € 823,945 (30 June 2010: € 645.000) provided the
following conditions are fulfilied:

(1) A reserve cquivalent to S times the net wealth tax liability is created. A new reserve has to be crealed
each year. This requires a decision of the gencral sharcholders” meeting and this reserve has to appear
in the balance sheet, If the profit of the year is not sufficient to create the reserve, it is possible to
transfer the profit of the preceding years to create such reserve.

(2) This reserve is maintained fer a period of at least 5 years after the year of the credit.

The amount of net wealth tax that can be reduced is the lower of net wealth tax and corporate income tax
before tax credits, and the reduction will be equalled to one fifth of the reserve booked.
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8.2 Current tax liabilities: composition (in € k)

IRC ICC Total
Ralance at the beginning of the year
A_ Current fiscal hiabilities (+) 16.314 4.912 21226
B. Advances paid {-) 1.420 350 1.770
A.l Fiscal liabilities: increase (+) T.101 2.166 9,267
- provisions of the year 6.644 2.032 8.676
- transfers
- others 457 134 591
A.2 Fiscal liabilities: decrease (-) -463 -139 -602
- payments of the year -463 =139 -602
- transfers — — —
- others — — —
B.1 Advances paid: increase (+) 320 100 420
- payments/advances 320 100 420
- trans fers — —
- others —
R.2 Advances paid: decrease (-) =300 — -300
- payments of the ycar -300 — -300
- transfers - —
- others — —
Total A. Fiscal liabilities 22.952 6.939 29.891
Total B. Advances paid 1.440 450 1.890
Current fiscal liabilities (A-B) 21.512 6.489 28.001

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior years have been done for € 391 k.

During the year the solidarity surcharge due by companies has been increased by 1%, from 4% to 5%. As
a consequence the corporate income tax rate (including the contribution to the employment {und) has
been increased from 21,84% to 22,05%. Taking into consideration the municipal business tax, which
amounts to 6,75% for the City of Luxembourg, the overall nominal income tax rate for corporations

amounts to 28.80% (28,59% in 2010).
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8.3 Changes in deferred 1ax liabilities during the period (in € kj

Deferred tax liabilities 304672011 30/06/2010
1. Initial amount 124 740 96,577
1.1 Initial amount 124.740 96.577
2. Additions [ 124,740
2.1 Deferred tax originating during the period 124.740
a) for previous years - —
b) due to changes in accounting policies - —
€) amounts written back - -
d} other addition 124,740
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates ] —
2.3 Other additions
3. Reductions 123.882 96.577
3.1 Deferred tax reversed during the period 123 882 96.577
a) amounts writlen off as unrecoverable —_
b) reverse 1o comprehensive income 123.882 96.577
¢) duc to changes in accounting policies — —
3.2 Reduction in tax rates —
3.3 Other reductions —
‘T'otal 864 124,740

The decrease in deferred tax provisioning is due to a different approach followed by the Bank in defining
and calculating timing differences; such changes are consequent to the tax asscssments received during
the fiscal year which led to a substantial re-definition and improvement of the approach to the reference

legislation.

The Bank wrote off the deferred taxes that have been provisioned during the previous exercises in order
1o align the amounts on the basis of the new fiscal position.

Readers should bear in mind that the difference between June 2011 and June 2010 has to be considercd in
its wholeness, regardless to defcrred tax assets and liahilitics separately.

s

Page [J3m: oo
o ;\_Q,\mm e g,

AT
~ Gbﬂwl“




8.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities by financial statement captions (in €k

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Deferred tax Deferred tax Tax rate Deferred tax Deferred tax Tax rate
assets liabilities 28.80% assets hiabilities 28,59%
Cash and cash equivalent — — — — —
Financial assets hft — — -355.618 -101.671
Loans and advances — - 1.284 -10.671 -2.684
Hedging derivatives — -67.018 -19.160
(ther asscts — — — — —
‘Total assets — — 1.284 -433.307 -123.515
Amounts due — - 125910 35,998
Debt securities — — 3.492 — 998
Financial liabilities hft — — 268,760 76,838
Hedging derivatives 32.198 §.205
Other liahilities — — — — —
Shareholders” equity -3.000 -864 217 -3,000 =796
Total liabilities — -3.000 -B64 430,577 -3.000 122.244
Section 10
Heading 100: Other liabilities
101 Other liabilities (in € k)
30/06/2011 30/06/2010 "
1. Pending invoices 6.801 47
2. Wages accrucd, contributions and amounts withheld from staff for payment 4 2
3. Impairment guarantees and commitments 348 388
4, Prepaid income other than capitalized on refated financial assels 21
5. Deferred income 350
6. Upfront premiums 2912 4.557
7. Amounls payable on loans and receivables 2.476 2.348
8. Other items — 157
Total 12.562 7.849

Upfront premiums refer to payments received on derivatives negotiated among the trading portfolio of the
Bank, which have been capitalized and will be reversed on a prorate basis to the comprehensive income.

*)For a comparison to be meaningful, 2010 figures have been reclassified as explained in Part B — Section 4 “Reclassification of

prioT vedr figuras™.
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Section 16

Heading 160: Reserves

16.1 Reserves (in € k)

Under Luxembourg law an amount equal to at least 5% of the net profit must be allocated 1o a legal
reserve until such reserve equals 10% of the issued share capital. This reserve is not available for
dividends distribution.

As of June 30, 2010 the Bank has taken up the option to credit net wealth tax against the tax itself,
provided that the following conditions have been respected:

¢ The IRC (corporale income tax) charge must be at lcast cqual to the IF (net wealth tax) charge in
order to credit the entire amount of the IF, if not only the amount of IF equivalent to the IRC
charge can be credited,;

» The Bank has to book a reserve for an amount at least 5 times the IF tax charge due for the
financial year 2010;

» This reserve will be maintained for a minimum period of 5 years.

(in €'k} 30/06/201 1 30/06/2010

A. Reserves 156,519 121227
A1 legal reserve 1.000 1.000
A2 free reserve 143.090 111.048
A3 special reserve'! 122172 8.962
A4 FTA reserve 217 217

" Reserve linked to the exoneration of net wealth tax charge.

Section 19

Heading 190: Share capital

19.1 Share capital

As of 30 June 2011 and 2010, the issued capital of the Bank amounts to EUR 10.000.000 and is divided
into 1 million shares with a par valuec of BUR 10 each.

Authorised capital and issue share capital coincide.
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Other information

1. Guarantees and commitments (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Financial guarantees given to: 83.955 44 980
a ) Banks - -
b) Customers 83959 44 980
2. Commercial guarantces given to: - -
a) Banks - -
b) Customers - -
3. Irtevocable commitments to lend funds: 1.642.511 1.286.621
a) Bunks - -
b) Customers 1.642.511 1.286.621
4. Commitment undetlyving credit derivatives: hedge sales 1,634,982 1217217
Total 3.361.452 2.548.818

Amounts are shown net of collcctive or specific impairment booked at the reporting date.

The Bank is a member of the non-profit making organisation “Association pour la Garantie des
Dépots. Luxembourg”™ (AGDL) that was established on 25 September 1982, The AGDL has as ils sole
objective the establishment of a mutual system for the guarantee of cash deposits for the benefit of
customers of the member credit institutions of the Association and for claims arising from investment
transactions in favour of investors with the credit institutions and investment firms which are members of

the Association.

The guarantee of cash deposits and of claims arising from investment transactions in favour of
clients, individuals and certain companies as defined by the regulations is limited to a maximum amount
fixed at the equivalent value in all currencies of € 100.000 per cash deposit and € 20.000 per claim arising
out of investment transactions. If the guarantee is called, the annual payment to be made by each member

is limited to 5% of Shareholders™ equity.
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PART D - NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Section 1

Headings 10 and 20: Net interest income

1.1 Interest and similar income: composition (in € k)

Performing assets
Debt Other financial N"“a‘;:gs"{,'}"“g 3000672011 | 30/0612010
securities Loans assets

|. Financial assets held for trading 16923 - — — 16.923 25980
2, Financial assets at fair value — — — — — —
3, AFS securities - — — — —
4. Financial assets held to maturity — — — — —
5. Loans and advances to credit institutions — 6.790 439 — 7.229 11.380
6. Loans and advances to customers 82.382 5.701 88.083 107.546
7. Hedging derivatives 25613 — 25.613 28.586
8. Financial assets sold but not derecognized

9. Other assets - — — — — -
Total 16.923 89.172 26052 5.701 137.848 173.492

™ {Inder the caption aon-performing are reported interests attributable to credit exposures both restructured and under
restructuring. In August 2011 the Bank has executed the financial guaraniee on a nonperforming exposurc 4t ils book value of €
11m; remaining non performing loans are fully covered by financial guarantees.

1.2 Interest and similar income: differences arising on hedging transactions (in € kj

30/06/2011 30/06/2010

A. Positive differences on transactions involving: 25613 28.586
A.1 Specific fair value hedge of assets 4.829 1.322
A.2 Specific fair value hedge of liabihtics 20.784 27264

A.3 General interest rate risk hedges — —
A4 Specific cash flow hedge of assets — —
A5 Specific cash flow hedge of liabilities — —

A.6 General cash flow hedpe —
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1.3 Interest and similar income: other information (in € k)

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

1.3.1 Interests receivable on [inancial asscts denominated in

currencies other than Euro

1.3.2 Interests receivable in respect of financial leasing

transactions

1.3.3 Interests income on receivables involving customers’

funds held un 2 non discretionary bhasis

27.955

44 710

1.4 Interest expense and similar charges: composition (in € k)

Payables

Notes

Other
liabilities

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

1. Amount due to Banks

2. Amount due 10 customers
3. Debt securities

4. Tradinyg liabilitics

5. Liabilitics at fair value

6. Liabilities in respect of assets sold but not yet
derecognized

7. Other liabilities

8. Hedging derivatives

-40.519
-3.465

-34.218

-40.519
-3.465
-27.333

-34.218

-72.663
-2.322
-51.958

-12.003

Total

-43.984

-27.533

-34.218

-105.735

-138.946

1.5 Interest expense and similar charges:

differences arising on hedging transactions (in € kj

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

A. Negative differences on transactions involving:
A1 Specific fair value hedge of assets
A 2 Specific fair value hedge of liabilities
A3 General interest rale risk hcdges
A4 Specific cash tlow hedge of assets
A5 Specific cash flow hedge of liabilities
A6 General cash flow hedge

-34218
-9.357
-24.861

-29.020

-29.020
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1.6 Interest expense and similar charges: other information (in € k)

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

1.6.1 Inlerests payable on financial Habilities denominated 1n

currencies other than Euro

1.6.2 Interests payable on liabilities in respect of financial leasing

transactions

1.6.3 Interests payable on customers' funds held on a non discretionary

hasis

-17.832

-29.508
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Section 2

Headings 40 and 50: Net fee and commission income

2.1 Fee and commission income: composition (in € k)

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

a) guarantees given
b) credit derivales
¢) management, trading and advisory services:
1. securities dealing
2. currency dealing
3. asset management
4. secunties under custody and non-discretionary
5. depositary services
6. securities placing
7. procurement of orders
& advisory services
9. ugency fees
9.1 assct management
9.2 insurance producls
9.3 other products
d) collection and payment services
©} securiization servicing
1) facloring scrvicing
g) tax collection and receipt services

h} lending services

8146

1.730

36,618

383

800

47.297

Total

39.164

48.480
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2.2 Fee and commission expense (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010

a) guarantees received -— —
b) credit derivatives
¢) management and services.,
1. secuntics dealing —
2. currency dealing — —
3. asset management: — —
3.1 own portfolio — —
3.2 clients” portfoling _
4. securitics custody and non-discretionary management
5. securities placing -371 —
6. door-to-door sales of secunities, products and services — —
d) collection and payment services — —

e} lending services -23.062 -30.709

Total -23.433 -30,70%
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Section 4

Heading 90: Net hedging income (expense)

4.1 Net hedging income {expense): composition (in € kj

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
A Income from:
A 1 Fair value hedge derivatives 24881 78298
A 2 Financial assets hedged (fair value) 1.516 22.521
A.3 Financial liabilities hedged (fair value) B(L.860 —
A4 Cash flow hedge financial derivatives
A5 Assets and liabilities in foreign currency —
Total hedging income (A) 107,257 100.819
B. Expenses relating to:
B.1 Fair value hedge derivatives -65.074 -22.536
B.2 Financial assets hedged (fair value) -20.015 —
B 3 Financial liabilitics hedged {fair value} 221972 -78.348
B 4 Cash flow hedge tinancial liabilitics —
B.5 Assets and liabilities in foreign currency
Total hedging expenses (B) -107.061 -100.884
C. Net hedging income {A-B) 196 -65
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Section §

Heading 100: Gain (or loss) on disposal or repurchase

5.1 Gains (losses) on disposals/repurchases: composition (in € k)

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

Gains

Losses

Net profit
{loss}

Gains

Losses

Net profit
(loss)

Financial assets
I. Due from Banks
2. Due from customers
3. AFS sccurities
3.1 Debt securities
3.2 Equities
3.3 UCITS units
3.4 Loans and advances
4. Financial assets held to maturity

Total ussets

Financial liabilities
1. Due tvo Banks
2. Due to custamers

3. Debt securities in issue

18.758

18.758

394

-328

66

Total liabilities

18.758

18,738

394

-328

66
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Section 6

Heading 130: Adjustments for impairment

6.1 Adjustments for impairment: lending portfolio (in € k)

Value adjustments Amounts recovered
Transactions/Income-linked s0/06/2011 | 30/06/2010
components Specific Specific Portfolio
Wite | goees | A B A B
offs
A Due from Banks — — — — — — — —
B. Due {rom customers — -291 — — 675 384 -1.717
C. Total — — -291 — — — 675 384 -1,717
Legend
A — Interests
B = other amounts recovered
6.2 Adjustments for impairment: other financial transactions (in € k)
Value adjustments Amounts recovered
‘Transactions/Ineome-linked Specific Specific Portfolio 30062011 | 30/062010
components — Portfalio
Write 1 Others A B A B
offs

A. Guarantees given — - -33 - — 15 -18 =22
B. Credit derivatives — _ — — — — _ —
C. Commitments — -174 — — — 232 58 -366
D. Other transactions — — — — — — — _ —
. Total — — -207 — — — 247 40 -388
Legend
A = interest

B - uther amounts recovered
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Section 7
Heading 180: Administrative expenses

7.1 Personnel cost: composition (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
l.Employces -364 -341
a) wages and salaries -288 -306
b) social security charges -15 -15
¢) severance indemnities
d} pension contributions -2 -18
e) transfers (v severance indemnity provision
f} transfers to post-employment and similar benefits: — -—
— defined contribution - —
— defined benefit —
g} payments to outside complementary pension schemes: -21 -2
= defined contribution -1 -2
— defined benefit — —
h) expenses incurred in connection with share paymeni schemcs
i) other staff benefits -18 —
2. Other staff -451 -259
3. Board members -135 -135
Total -950 -73s
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7.2 Other administrative expenses: composition {in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
- outside consultants” f2es -234 -155
- legal fees due in respect of credit recovery -
- share and hbond administration -137 -84
advertising -45 5
— insurance -1 -2
rents and leases -146 -151
maintenance, repairs and refurbishment -10 -1
- service providers -5 -3
— financial information subscriptions -1
stationery and printing -6 -2
membership subscrnptions -19 -78
postal, telephone, fax and telex charges 221 -25
newspapers, magazines and library acquisitions
- other stafl expenses - <35
utilities —
- EDP costs -560 -500
- Bank charges -15 -16
- travel and secondment -4 -39
- putsourced activities -4.346 =260
other expenses -7 -17
Total other expenses -5.556 -1.374
indirect and other taxes -715 -202
Total indirect tax -715 -202
Total other administrative expenses -6.271 -1.576
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Section 8

Heading 200: Net adjustments to tangible assets

8.1 Net adjustments to tangible assets: composition (in € k)

Adjustments
for Amounts
Depreciation impairment recoveries 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
A. Tangible assets
Al Owned: -1 -18
—Core — — -1 -18
— [nvestment - — —
A 2 Acquired under finance leases; — — —
Core
— Investment — — —
Total — — -1 -18
Section 9
Heading 220: Other operating income (expenses)
9.1 Other operating income (expenses): composition (in € k)
30/06/201 ( 30/06/2010
A. Other income (expenses) — other — ]R8
Sundry other expense reimbursements — —
- Birect debit expense reimbursements —
Release provision 18
- Other income 440 81
Other charges -11
B. Other income (expenses)  amounts recovered 38
withholding tax 38
- Amounts recovered from staff —_ —
- Amounts rccovered from clients - —
—Other amounts recovered - —
Total 440 126
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Section 10
Heading 290: Income tax on the ordinary activity

10.1 Income tax on the ordinary activity: composition (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Current taxes -8.676 -8.360
2. Changes in current tax for previous financial years -592
3. Decrease in current tax for period — ha
4. Changes in deferred tax assets -4.929 26936
4.1 related to previous fiscal exercise (reverse to the comprehensive income) -4.929 -96.533
4.2 generaied in the fiscal exercise — 123.469
5. Changes in deferred tax liabilities 5.337 -28.163
3.1 related to previvus fiscal exercive (reverse to the comprehensive income) 5.343 96.577
5.2 generated in the fiscal exercise -6 -124 744
Fotal -8.860 -9.527
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PART E — OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

A, PRIMARY SEGMENT REPORTING

The Bank does not run separate accounts or reporting for individual divisions or other business
segments, primary because the business is essentially focused on wholcsale banking. Upper management
uses specific markets segment reporting (i.e. geographical, economic sector, ratings) to evaluate
scgment's income, expenses, assets, liabilitics and so on in order to asscss profitability and riskiness of the
business. The Bank’s scgmental reporting is based on the following operating scpments: corporate
lending, export finance, leverage acquisition, project finance, other.

Corporate lending: handles loans to corporates with a view to meeting clients' financial needs
connected to specific investmenis or generated by growth. Financing solutions are offered to large or mid-
size domestic and international corporate clients, whether industrial or service-oriented. The corporate
lending segment includes, among the others, the following products: club-deal loans, syndicated loans.

Export finance: provides financial support to exporters of goods and services to counterparties
usually located in emerging markets, including with the support of government organizations granting the
insurance cover and/or interest rate subsidy (such as SIMEST, SACE or other Luropean export credit
agencies). Structuring of transactions, often syndicated, goes hand-in-hand with advisory services
provided to clients in respect of ncgotiations with commercial counterparties and financial or sovereign
institutions. The export finance segment includes, among the others, the following products: export credit
(buycrs™ credit, suppliers’ credit), trade finance, pre-export finance, commercial loans, and Islamic
finance.

Leverage finance: provides financial support to corporate and institutional investors on leveraged
transaction involving acquisition of stakes of listed or non-listed companies. Develops, arranges,
structures, underwrites and exccules a full array of tfinancial solutions arranged in complex fashion and,
because of their size, often syndicated on the international market. The leverage finance segment
includes, among the others, the following products: acquisition finance, leverage buyout (LBQ), and
management buyout (MBO).

Project finance: advices clients on the whole structure of transactions involving industrial or
infrastructure investment/projects, including bid stralegy, selection of most cfficient type of debt
instrumenl, hedging techniques, contractual structuring and financial modeiling. The project finance
segment includes, among the others, the following products: project finance, infrastructure finance, and
rcal estate finance.

Other: residual segment that contains products and operations other than the above.
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Al Finuncial statement by business segment (in € k)

CORPORATE EXPORT LEVERAGE PROJECT OTHER
LENDING FINANCE FINANCE FINANCFE

10. Cash and cash equivalent 9.369 84 6.296 1.322 -
20. Financial assets held for trading 411.828 3.702 276.755 58.105 183.585
60. Loans and advances to credit institutions 3176 856 3.387 253.252 53171 168 888
70. Loans and advances ta customers 2.119.999 19.055 1.424.673 299.114 18.971
80. Hedging derivatives 52.309 470 35.152 7.380 -
120 Tangible assets - - - - 2
150 QOther assets 3.933 35 2.643 555 2.058

Total assets 2.974.294 26.734 1.998.772 419.648 373.904
10. Amount due to Banks -1.634.767 -14.694 -1.098.589 -230.652 -150.315
20 Amount due to customers -280.550 -2.522 -188.534 -39.583 -37.508
30 Debt securities in issue -898.397 -8.075 -603.737 -126.756 -
40, Financial liabilitics held for trading -19.079 -171 -12.822 -2.692 -183.663
60 Hedging derivatives -8 887 -80 -5972 -1.254 -
80. Tax liabilities -15.842 -142 -10.646 -2.235 -
100 Other liabilities -5.296 -48 -3.559 =747 -2.912
160. | Shwrcholders™ eyuily -91 388 -821 -61.414 -12.894 -

Total liabilities -2.954.207 -26.554 -1.985.274 -416.814 -374.399
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A.2 Comprehensive income data by business segment (in € k)

CORPORATE EXPORT LEVERAGE PROJECT OTHER
LENDING FINANCE FINANCE FINANCE

010. | Interests reccivable and similar income 70.028 306 54.658 11.758 1.097
020 | Interests payablc and similar charges -33.833 -235 -42.017 -9.039 611
030. | Net interest income 16.195 71 12.641 2,719 486
040. | Fee and commission income 19.170 B4 14.963 3.220 1.730
050. | Fee and commission expense -11 810 -53 -4.218 -1.983 -371
060, | Net fee and commission income 7.360 31 5.745 1.236 1.359
080. | Net trading income/expense -7.664 -33 -5.982 -1.287 -508
090, | Net hedging income/expense 100 — 78 17 —
100. | Gain or loss on disposal or repurchase of 9.606 43 7.497 1.613 —

a/ loans and receivables — — — — —

b) financial assets avalable for sale — — — — —

¢} finuncial wssets held to maturity

o) financial liabilities 9 606 43 7497 1613 —
120. | Total income 25.597 112 19.979 4,298 1.337
130. ] Value adjustments 218 1 169 36 —
140. ] Net income from the financial management 25.815 113 20.148 4.334 1.337
180. § Administrative expenses -3.698 -16 -2.886 -621
200, | Value adjustments in respect of tangible assets — — — — -1
220. } Other operating income/expense — — — — 440
280. | Profit (loss) of the ordinary activity before tax 22.116 97 17.262 3.714 1.776
260. | Income tax on the ordinary activity -4.537 -20 -3 541 -762 —
340. | Profit (loss) for the year 17.579 77 13.721 2,952 1.776
350. | Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of
360. | tax 17.579 77 13.721 2.952 1.776

Assets have been allocated on the basis of the originator business unit, while break down of
liabilities has been performed following criteria of econemic pertinence.
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B. SECONDARY SEGMENT REPORTING

B.! Income statemeni figures by geographical region (in € )

LUXEMBOURG EUROPE AMERICA ASIA OCEANIA
Net mterest imcome -3.570 21874 12,545 — 1.204
Net fee and commission income 2.561 3191 6.726 — 3.253
Net trading Income/expense -21431 13977 -7.454 — -567
Net hedging income/expensc 2,065 -1.869 — —
Giain or loss on disposal or repurchase 17.621 1,137
Value adjustments 112 449 -137
Administrative expenses -2.027 -5.194
Value adjustments on tangible assets -1 - -
Other operating income {expenses) -1 340 100 — —
Income tax -8.860 — _— — _
Net profit/loss 2011 -13531 33.905 11,780 — 3.950
Net proﬁﬂo_ss 2010 26.492 -21.581 24,618 3.570 2.193
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B.2 Financial statement data by geographical region (in € k)

LUXEMBOURG EUROPE AMERICA ASIA OCEANIA
Cash and cash balances with Central Banks 17.072 — — — —
Financtal assets held for trading 263.297 627.887 41.192 — —
Loans and advances to Credit Lnstitutions 176 855377 — —
Loans and advances to Customers 497.191 3.111.046 266.762 6,813
Hedging derivatives 95311 -
Pryperty, plant and equipment 2
Tax assets — — — — —
Other assets 252 $.622 351 — —
A. Total aszets 30/06/2011 779.990 4.698,243 308.305 — 6.813
Amount due to Banks — -3.129.017 — —
Amount due to customers -395.175 -153.523
Deht securities in issue -1.228.013 -408.952
Financial liabilities held for trading -11.813 -206.614
Hedgmpg derivatives - -16.193 - —
Tax liabilities 28 865
Other liabilities -44 -12.397 -122 —
Sharsholders’ equity -166,519 — —- —
B. Total Habilities 30/06/2011 -1.830.429 -3.926.696 -122
Total assets 30/06/2010 1.297.075 4.461.093 469.532 200.744 7.688
Total linbilities 30/06/201¢ -3.433.456 -2.967.348 -35 — —

" Profit for the period excluded
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PART F - INFORMATION ON RISKS AND RELATED HEDGING POLICIES

Section 1
1.1 CREDIT RISK
QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to
discharge their contractual obligations. The Bank manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the
amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry
concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

The Bank has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible
changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty
limits are established by the use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a
risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision. The credit quality review process aims to allow the
Bank to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is cxposed and take corrective action.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with
positive fair values, as recorded on the statement of financial position. Tn the case of credit derivatives, the
Bank is also exposed to (or protected from) the risk of default of the underlying entity referenced by the
derivative.

The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees which may require that the Bank makes
payments on their behalf and enters into commitments 1o extend credit lines to secure their liquidity
needs. Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit the Bank to make
payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, gencrally related to the import or export of
goods. Such commitments exposc the Bank to similar risks to loans and are mitigated by the same control
processes and policies.

The Risk management unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures
1o ensure an independent control process is maintained. The unit works closely with the Risk Committee
to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall framework. Risk management is controlled by the
Parent Bank and is divided into the following units: enterprise risk management, credit risk management
and market risk management. Credit risk management unit is responsible for executing the credit risk
analysis entailed by lending and market transactions, and for assigning credit ratings to the counterparties
in these transactions.

During the year there were no significant changes in the Bank's objectives, policies and process for
managing credit risk.

Corporate banking

The Group’s internal system for managing, evaluating and controlling credit risk reflects ils
traditional policy based on a prudent and highly selective approach. Lending decisions are based on
individua! analysis, which builds on adequate and often extensive knowledge of the borrower’s business,
assets and management, as well as the macro-cconomic framewerk in which it operates. Applications for
finance arc processed through the different operating levels, and, if successful, are submitted for approval
to the relevant bodies, i.e. the Risks Commitiee and Executive Committee, depending on the amount
required and the credit rating of the counterparty involved. Once the finance has been disbursed the
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account is monitored on an ongoing basis, via analysis of published financial statements and a serics of
other controls (ie, covenants). Any detcrioration in the risk profile of a loan is brought swiftly to the
attention of head of the operating unit and management.

Leverage finance

As a part of its corporale lending activity the Bank takes an active part in buyout transactions
promoted or sponsored almost entirely by private equity funds in order to take over companies with
promising prowth prospects, low debt levels and stable cash flows over time. Such transactions have a
sub-investment grade rating, a non-rccourse contractual structure and horrowing is commensurate with
future cash flow levels. The purpose of such transactions is never for Mediobanca International
(Luxembourg) 5.A. to acquire larget companies, as the majority stakes arc held directly by the private
cquity funds.

Loan impairment provisions

The Bank assumes directly the credit risk for some exposures, under the aim to advance the core
business taking into account the positive relation between risk and profitability. The Risk Committee
defines the positions and the risks that can be taken based on a credit portfolio analysis in order to pursuc
an optimal diversification among geographical arcas, industry sector and class of rating.

The Bank maintains partial or complete guarantees on certain exposures, depending on the
creditworthiness, market sector and nature of cach loan. Such guarantees are issued by the Parent Bank or
public agencies (i.e. SACE, UFK, Hermes).

According to the IAS 39, the Bank regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess for impairment.
Impairment provisions are established to recognize incurred impairment losses in loan portfolios carricd
at amortized cost. In determining whether an impairment has occurred at the balance sheet date, the Bank
considers whether there is any observable data indicating that there has been a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows or their timings; such observable data includes whether there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers or changes in economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on loan repayment obligations. Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses
inherent in portfolios with similar economic characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest
that they contain impaired claims, but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified. In assessing
the need for collective loss allowances, management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and cconomic factors.
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QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

A.1.1 Financial assets hv portfolio and credit quality (in € k)

Portfolio/Quality Non-performing Performing 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
1. Financial assets held for trading 918946 G18.946 1.165.996
Banks — 24.960
Customers 122.640 122.640 257.691
Dertvative instruments 796.306 796.306 883.345
2. AFS sceuritics
Banks
Customers — -- — —
3. Financial asscts held to maturity — — — —
Banks — — — —
Customers — — — —_
4. Due from Banks - 855.554 855.554 1.067.940
5. Due from customers 89.125 3.792.687 3.881.812 3.856.006
6. Financial asscts recognized at fair value — —_— — —
Banks
Customers - — — —
7. Financial assets being sold
Banks — —_ — -
Customers
8. ledping derivatives — 95311 95311 153309
Total 89,125 5.662.498 5.751.623 6.273.251
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1.1a CREDIT RISK - EXCESSIVE RISK CONCENTRATION
QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

Concentrations arise when a number of customers/counterparties operate on business activitics in
the same geographical region or in the same market, or have similar economic features that would
question their capahility to meet contractual obligations to be similarly undermined by changes in
economic, political or other conditions. The Bank’s performance may be affected by developments
concerning a particular industry or geographical area. In order 1o avoid cxcessive concentrations of risk,
the Bank’s monitors on a monthly basis the concentration of his loan portfolio based on the following
items: geographical, cconomic sector, class of rating, currencies. Identified concentrations of credit risks
are controlled and managed accordingly and are always considered as strategic guidelines in the Risk
Committee resolutions in order to achieve an improved diversification,

Risk concentrations: maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and
other credit enhancements

‘The Bank’s concentrations of risk are managed by client/counterparty, by geographical region and
by industry sector. The maximum credit exposure to any client or counterparty as of 30th June 2011 was
Euro 422 million (2010: Euro 620 million) before taking account of collatcral or other credit
enhancements and Curo 39 million (2010: Euro 44 million) net of such protection.

‘The following tables show the maximum exposure to credil risk for the components of the
statement of financial position, including derivatives, guarantees and commitments by geography of
counterparty and by industry before the effect of any mitigation.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown represent the current
credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the futurc as a resuit of
changes in values.

QUANTITATIVE INFORMA TION
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B.1 Cash and off balance sheet exposure 10 customers by secior (in € kj

Z - & = = @
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Sc 2 28 £ E 2 o E
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A, Cash exposures

A1 Non-pertorming
(ross exposure — — 38.007 — 51.118 —
Value adjusiments to gross exposure — -
Value adjustments to portfolio — — — — — —

Net exposure — — 38.007 S1.118

A 2 Other exposures
Gross exposure 1.363.841 — 2.552.819 -
Value adjustments to gross exposure . — —
Value adjustments to portfolia -336 — -997
Net cxposure - 1.363.505 — 2.551.822

Total A
Gross exposure — —_ 1.401.848 — 2 603937 -
Value adjustiments 1o gross exposure
Value adjusments to porttolio -336 — =997
Net exposure — — 1.401.512 — 2.60G2.940 —

B. Off-balance sheet cxposures

B.1 Non-performing
Gross exposure — — — — 3973 —
Value adjusiments to gross exposure — — — — — —
Valuc adjustments to portfolio

Net exposure — — — — 3.973 —

B.2 Other exposures
Giross exposure — — 104.289 — 1.623.788

Value adjustments to gross exposure — — — —

Valuc adjustments to portfolio — — =27 -321 —
Net exposure — — 104.262 — 1623467 —
Total B
{Gross cxposure 104,289 - 1.627.761 —
Value adjustments to gross exposure — —
Value adjustments to portfolio — — =27 : -321 —
Net exposure 104262 — 1.627.440 —
Total 30/06/2011
Gross exposure 1.506.137 — 4231698
Value adjustments to gross exposure — — — — — —
Value adjustments to portfolio -363 — -1.318 —
Net exposure - 1.505.774 4230380
Net exposure 30/06/2010 — — § 1222899 — 5.445 298
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C.1 Securitizations

As of 30 June 2011 and 2010 the Bank docs not have any exposure deriving from securitizations.
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1.2 MARKET RISK
1.2.1 Interest rate risk — regulatory trading book

QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Bank’s policy is to monitor positions on a regnlar
basis and to offset the overall risk exposure using appropriate hedging and ALM sirategics.

According to the CSSF Circular 06/273 as amended, the Bank performs semi-annually a “test
d’endurance en maticre de risque dc taux d'intérét” based on two interest raic curves scenatios (+200 bps
and -200 bps) defined by the Regulator.

Interest rate risk is controlled on an ongoing basis by the Management using peculiar risk
management reports, The gap analysis report is available cvery day, showing the sensitivity of the balance
sheet for a 1 basis point shift of the interest rate curve. A monthly ALM Report points out the
mismatching of the balance sheet in terms of maturity and rate re-fixing. Based on reporting evidences,
the Management of the Bank — in coordination with the Ireasury Department of the Parent company —
decides on possible remedial measures (if needed) concerning the “mix™ of funding (Notes, overdraft on
current account, time deposits, loans, etc) in order to obtain a better matching with the lending.

According to the part VIII of the Circular CSSF 08/338, an “endurance test™ of intetest rate risk
was carricd out as at 30 June 2011. The simulation was based on two different scenarios (parallel shift of
the interest rate curve +200 and -200 bps). The results achieved are described herein after:

- Scenario +200 bps: - € 23.130.280
- Scenario -200 bps: €19.135.887

Fair value hedge

Fair value hedges are used to neutralize exposure to interest rate or price risk for particular asset
or liability positions, via derivative contracts entered into with leading counterparties; all structured notes
issues are fair value hedged as to the interest rate component. Fair value hedges are also used in carporate
finance tor certain bilateral, fixed rate transactions.

During the year there were no significant changes in the Barks objectives. policies and process
for managing interest rate risk.
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1.2.2 Exchange rate risk

QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

Forex risk exposure is minimal. A continuous monitoring and a dynamic management of the
Hiquidity allow the offsetting of the financial structure in terms of currency risk exposure.

Forex exposures are funded with financial liabilities in the same currencies and, whenever this kind
of strategy results unrealizable in terms of costs/opportunity, specific hedging transactions are negotiated
with the treasury dept of the Parent Bank (i.e. CCS, ICS). Forex exposurc is constantly monitored by
management through dedicated ALM reports; corrective actions are dealt if necessary.

As at 30 June 2011 the Bank has not registered any forex capital allowance.

During the year there were no significant changes in the Bank’s objectives, policies and process for
managing its exchange rate risk.

QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

1. Assets, liabilities and derivatives by currency (in € k)

Currency
Line items
US dollars Pounds sterling Japanese yen Swiss francs Other

A. Assets

A.1 Debt securities 7459 — - —

A2 Equities —

A3 Loans and advances to Banks 17872 4262 — 62.904 1.478

A4 Loans and advances to customer 393395 488.580 44 406 26.679

A5 Other financial assets — - — —
B. Financial liabilities

B.1 Due to Banks -311.713 -490.048 -7 -45.168 -28.096

B.2 Due 1o customers -26.847 — —

B.3 Debt securities -95.505 -11.702 — -62.132 —

B 4 Other financial liahilities
C. Financial Derivatives

- Options — - —

+  long positions

+  short positions — _ o n

- Other 13.838 8.309 - —

+  long positions 13.838 8.309 - -

+  short positions
Total assets 30/06/2011 432 564 501.151 — 107310 28.157
Total liabilities 30/06/2011 -434 065 -501.750 -7 -107.300 -28.096
Difference (+/-) 30/06/2011 -1.501 -599 -7 10 61
Total asscts 30/06/2010 1.199.561 461.741 17 85963 27.949
Total ligbilities 30/06/2010 -1.199.911 -461.626 -16 -86.785 -27.933
Difference (+/-) 30/06/2010 =350 115 1 -822 16
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1.2.3 Financial derivative products

Derivatives often involve at their inception only a mutual exchange of promises with little or no
transfer of consideration. However, these instruments may involve a degree of leverage and are volatile.
A relatively small movement in the value of the asset, rate or index underlying a derivative contract may
have a significant impact on the profit or loss of the Bank.

Over-the—counter derivatives may expose the Bank to the risks associated with the absence of an
exchange market on which to close out an open position.

The Bank’s cxposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the overall
management of the Bank’s market risk. During the year there were no significant changes in the Bank's
objectives, policies and process for managing those risks.

A. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

A1 Regulatory trading book: average and reporting date notional values (in € k)

30/06/2011 30/6/2010

Over the counter Listed Over the counter Listed

Type of transactions

. Debt securities and interest rates
a) Options — —
b} Swap 1185310 441 812
@) Forward — — —
d) Futures — — — —
e) Others

Equities and share indexes
a) Options 804,328 — — —
b) Swap — — — —
¢) Forward — — —
d) Futures
e) Others — — —

12

o5}

. Exchange rates and Gold
a}Qptions — — — —
b) Swap 13.838 86 642 —
c) Forward — -

d) Futures — — — —_
e) Others — — —

4 Commodities

5. Other asscts —
Total 2.003.476 — 531.454 —

Average values 1.566.262 — 403.797 —
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A2 Regulalory hanking book: average and reporting date notional values (in € k)

A.2.1 Hedging derivatives

30/062011 30/06/2010
Over the counter Listed Over the counter Listed

Type of transactions

1. Debt securities and interest rates
a) Options — — — —_
b) Swap 9948481 e 1.475.813
c) Forward — -—
d) Fulures — — = —
e) Others'™” 200000 — 200.000 —

. Equities and sharc indexes
a) Options — — -
b) Swap — — —

[

¢} Forward
d) Futures — — —
&) Others - — — —

wr

Fxchange rates and Gold
a) Options - — — —
b) Swap 8310 25473
c) Farward — — —
d) Futures — — —
¢) Others

4. Commodities

5. Other assets — — —
Total 1.203.158 — 1.701.286 -
Average values 1.083.699 — 1.274.769 —

) Notional values of swap options as at 30 June 2010 have been reclassified from “a) Qptions™ into “e)
Others™.
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A.2.2 Other derivatives

Type of transactions

30/06/2011

30/06/2010

Over the counter

Listed

Over the counter

Listed

—

. Debt securities and interest rates
a) Options
b) Swap
¢) Forward
d) Futures
e) Others

700.000

B2

Equities and share indexes
a) Options

b} Swap

¢) Forward

d) Futures

e} Others

347.006

[}

. Exchange rates and Gold
a) Options
b) Swap
c) Forward
d) Futures
e} Others

338.196

4. Commoditics

5. Other assets

Total

347.006

1.860.511

Average values

343,524

1.540.223
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A3 OTC financial derivatives: positive fair value (in €k)

Positive fair value

Type of transactions 30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Over the counter Listed Over the counter Listed
A. Regulatory trading book 304.529 — 296,162 —
a) Options 24 640
b) Interest Rate Swap 279.765 — 296,162
¢} Cross Currency Swap 124 — — —
d) Equily Swap
¢) Forward
f) Futures — — — —
2} Others —_ . _ -
B. Banking book: Hedge derivatives 157977 245616
a) Options — —
b) Intcrest Rate Swap 31y = 150.597 —
¢) Cross Currency Swap — — 2712
d) Equity Swap —— e — —
¢} Forward
) Futures - — — —
g) Others 62 666 92307
C. Banking book: Others derivatives 96.679 — 167.810 —
a) Options 96.679 — — —
b) Interest Rate Swap — — 5.187
¢) Cross Currency Swap — — 20.695
d) Equity Swap — — — —
c) Forward — — — -
f) Futurcs —
g) Others — — 141928 —
Total 559.185 — 709.588 -

) Table shows outstanding amounts by type of transactions while in last year’s annual accounts they have
been grouped by counterparty.
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A4 OTC financial derivatives: negative fair value — financial risk (in € k)

Negative fair value

Type of transactions 30/06/2011 30/06/2010"
Over the counter Listed Over the counter Listed

A. Regulatory trading book -124.010 — -9.829

a) Options -118.362 —

b) Interest Rate Swap -5.648 -

¢) Cross Currency Swap — -6.829

d) Equity Swap

e} Forward —

) Futures — —

g) Others — — —
B. Banking book: Hedge derivatives -78.859 -125.551

a) Options - — —_

b) Interest Rate Swap -14.672 -32.278

¢) Cross Currency Swap -1.521 — -966

d) Equity Swap — — —

e) Forward — —

1} Futures — — -

£} Others -62.666 -92.307
C. Banking book: Others derivatives -2.635 -157.118

a) Options -2.635 — —

b) Interest Rate Swap — — —

t) Cross Currency Swap -15.190

d) Equity Swap — — —

¢) Forward

f) Futures -

g) Others — — -141.928
Total -205.504 — -292.498

) Tuble shows outslanding amounls by type of (ransactions while in last year’s annual accounts they have

been grouped by counterparty.
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AT OTC financial derivatives hy maturity: notional values (in € k)

Underlying/Residual maturity Upto 1 year menl;ll;o 5 Over S years Total
A. Regulatory trading book
Al F?nancial derivatives on debt securities 94219 046,09 145.000 1 185.310
and interest rates
A2 F]nlanmal derivatives on equities and 457 479 55.95] 290 897 804.327
share indexes
A3 Financial derivatives on foreign currency 13 838 o _ 13.838
and gold
A4 Financial derivatives on other assets — — - —
B Banking book:
B 1 F!nanclal derivatives on debt sccurities 68.000 378282 748 565 1,194,847
and interest rates
B2 l"m.ancral derivatives on equities and 55951 297 055 347.006
share indexes
B.3 Financial derivatives on forcign currency o 2310 _ 8310
and gold
B.4 Financial derivatives on other asscts -
Teotal at 30/06/2011 633.536 1.444.585 1.475.517 3.553.638
Total at 30/06/2010 629339 3.153.508 310.404 4.093.251
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B. CREDIT DERIVATIVES

B.1 Credit derivatives. average and reporting date notional values (in € k)

. Regulatory trading book Other transactions
Transaction categories
Individual assets Baskets Endividual assets Baskets
1. Hedge buys
) Credit default 112.799 500.000 191.854 11.500
b) Credit spread products -
¢} Tolal rate of return swap
d) Others _
‘T'otal at 30/06/2011 112,799 500.600 191.854 11.500
Average values 112,799 500.000 164.249 11.500
Total at 30/06,2010 470.984 — 90.000 40.746
2. Hedge sales
aj Credit default 184.768 261.500 149,914 1.038.800
b) Credit spread products
¢} Total rate of retum swap -
d) Others _
Total at 30/06/2011 184.768 261.500 149.914 1.038.800
Average valucs 158.754 261500 140914 1.038.800
Total at 30/06/2010 278.470 808.000 90.000 40.746
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B.2 Credit derivatives: positive fair value (in € k}

Positive FV
30/06.2011 30/06/2010

Transaction categories

1. Regulatory trading book
a) Credit default 260.530 294 875
b) Credit spread products
c) Total rate of return swap e —

d) Others — 26.139

[

. Regulatory banking book
a) Credit default 71.902 6.052
b} Credit spread products
¢} Total rate of return swap — —
d) Others — —

B.3 Credit derivatives. negative fair value (in € k)

Negative FV
30/06/2011 30/06/2010

Transaction categories

1. Regulatory trading book
a) Credit default -24 841 -15.033
b) Credit spread products
¢) Total rate of return swap — —

d) Others — -10.703
2. Regulatory banking book
a) Credit default -4.275 -5.202

b) Credit spread products — _—
¢) Total rate of retum swap —
d) Others — _
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B.5 Credit derivatives: outstanding life — notional values (in €k)

Transaction categories Up to 1 year From 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
1. Regulatory trading book 62.219 996.848 — 1.059.067
2) CNS with “qualified” reference
obligation 62.219 943,794 — 1.006.013
h) CDS with “unqualificd” rcference
obligation 53.054 — 53.054
2. Regulatory bunking book 97.300 1.294 768 — 1,392,068
a) CNS with “yualified” relerence
obligation 55.300 1.241.714 — 1.297.014
by CDS with “unyualified” reference
ublization 42.000 53.054 95.054
Total at 30/06/2011 159.519 2.291.616 — 2.451.135
Total at 30/06/2010 439.269 1.379.679 e 1.818.948
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1.3 Liquidity risk
QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

Liquidity risk is measured through indicators based on definite cash inflows and outflows to take
place in the months to come, and also on the basis of data which includes estimates of:

— new loans/repayments/renewals for lending;
— new issues/early redemptions for funding;

— any significant extraordinary items.

The Bank has conducted liquidity stress tests following the CEBS guidelines on Liquidity Buffers &
Survival Period (December 2009) and the CEBS guidelines on Stress Testing {Decemnber 2009).

The liquidity stress tests performed allow the Bank to assess the potential impact of extreme but
plausible stress scenarios on their liquidity positions and their current or contemplated mitigants. The
management of the Bank was highly involved in the discussions of the stress tests. The result has been
formalized imto the ‘Liguidily stress tests methodology ' document.

The Bank approach regarding liquidity stress tests can b summarived as follows:

»  Analysis of risk factors generating liquidity risk: as liquidity risk is a ‘consequential risk” or
‘secondary risk’ generaled by other risks (ypes. the Bank performed an analysis assessing the
primary risks impacting the liquidity.

» Liquidity stress testing methodology

The Barnk has combined the liquidity risk leading practices applicable te its liquidity profile and
therefore built a tailor-made approach in line with the nature and complexity of its business activities. The
approach consists of:

* The historical analysis of the cash flows during 2010 and 2011 to identify common patterns

= The analysis of both baiance and off-balance sheet items to understand the liquidity generating
capacity (inflows) and the liquidity consumption (outflows) as well as any liquidity inter-
relations between assets and liabilities. This assessment is in line with the CSSF 09/403 Annex 1
— Recommendation 6.

=  The creation of a tailor-made indicator, which reflects the exposure of the Bank towards
liquidity. The Operating Indicator (Ol is built based on:
o the historical analysis of the inflows / outflows,
o the Asset Liability Management (ALM) analysis,
o the historical analysis of the balance sheet of 2010 and 2011 and finally,
o the future cash inflows and outflows scheduled.

The evolution of the indicator is monitored on a monthly basis by the Bank’s management and
discussed with the Parent company.

* The stress testing framework has been elaborated based on the indicator to better represent
the liguidity evolution of the Bank. In building the siress tests, the Bank has considered
idiosyneratic scenarios, market scenarios and a combination of them;

» A reverse siress test scenario has been included in the analysis.




Contingency Funding Plan (CFP)

The Bank has claborated the Contingency Funding Plan (CFP), both for preparing for and dealing
with a liquidity crisis. The management of the Bank was highly involved in the discussions of the CFP.
The plan is customized to the liquidity risk profile of the Bank (principle of proportionaily).

During the year there were no significant changes in the Bank’s objectives. policies and process for
managing liquidity risk.
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1.4 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of incurring losscs as a result of external events or the inadequacy or
malfunctioning of procedures, staff and internal systems. Operational risk includes legal risk, but does not
include strategic or reputational risk.

The Bank has decided o adopl the Basic Indicator Approach (“BIA™) in order o calculate (e
capital requirement for covering operational risk, applying a margin of 15% to the average of the last
three annual readings of total income. Based on this method of calculation the capital requirement as at 30
June 2011 is € 5,8 million (€ 3.9 million as at 30 June 2010); the increasce is due to the improved
profitability of the Bank in the last 3 fiscal years.

Segregation of duties, internal procedures, and technological systems in force mitigate the risk of
losses due to errors or inadequacies.

In the review of its internal procedures as part of the “Head of Company Financial Reporting”
project, the Bank has sought to identify the majority of the sources of possible risk and the relevant
measures to be taken to control and mitigate them, by formulating company procedures in order to deal
with them, and focusing mitigation activity on the most serious aspects.

With reference to the possibility of losses caused by interruptions in operations or due to systems
being unavailable, the Bank has drawn up operating continuity and disaster recovery plans to ensure that
activity is able to continue and to limit the operating losses in the event of prolonged interruptions. The
Bank regularly reviews the operating continuity and disaster recovery plans with a view to ensuring that
they are consistent with its activities and current operating strategies.

Control of internal access (individual system users) and external aceess (IT attacks) is carried out
via the relevant computer and observation tools.

Insurance policies have been taken out to cover the most valuable staff members and assets.
As for the possibility of risk deriving from outsourcing activities, the Group has implemented a
continuous monitoring and regular review system to assess the care taken in performing these activities

by the Parent company and Group’s IT Consortium entity.

As at 30 June 2011 and 2010 the Bank does not face any litigation risk.
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PART G - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital is the first and most important safeguard of a Bank’s stability. For this reason. the
international and domestic supervisory bodies have established rigorous rules for calculating regulatory
capital and the minimum capital requirements with which Banks are bound to comply. In particular, the
ratio between risk-weighted assets and regulatory capital must not fall below 8%.

Since its inception, one of the distinguishing features of the Italian Banking Group Medicbanca has
been the solidity of its financial structure, with capital ratios that have been consistently and significantly
higher than those required by the regulatory guidelines. Such surplus capital is justificd by the nature of
the operations on corporate markets.

The Bank maintains locally an actively managed capital base to cover risks inhcrent to the
business. The adequacy of the Bank's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and
ratios established by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BIS rules/ratios) and adopted by the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier supervising the Bank.

Regulatory capital has been calculated on the basis of CSSF Circulars 06/273 as amended and
07/301 as amended which transpose the prudential guidelines for Banks and banking groups introduced
by the Basel Capital Accord (Basel 1) into the Luxembourg regulatory framework.

During the ycars ended 30 June 2011 and 2010, the Bank had complied in full with all its externally
imposed capital requirements,

The primary objectives of thc Bank's capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with
externally imposed capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and 10 maximis¢ shareholders' value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, it needed, in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of ils activitics. No changes yet have been
made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years however it is under constant
serutiny of the Board of Directors of the Bank,

The Bank took part to the 1* and 2 impact assessment of the new Basel 111 liquidity requirement
realized by CSSF and BCL on the Luxembourg banking system. The assessment consisted in the early
calculation of both the liquidity coverage and net stable funding ratios.
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QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

In€ 30/06/2011 30/06/2011 30/06/2010 30/06/2010
(including profit |(excluding profit | (including profit | (excluding profit
of the fiscal year) |of the fiscal year) |of the fiscal year)| of the fiscal ycar)

Original own funds {Tier 1} 202.622 999 166.518.524 166.518.524 131.226.577

Additional own funds (Tier 2) 39.250.000 39.250.000) 39.250.00 39.250.000

Total own funds (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 241.872.99% 205.768.524 205.768.524 170.476.577
Credit/Counterparty risk (Standardized approach) 114.106 601 114 106601 104.670.401 104.670.401
Market risk (Standardized Approach) -

Operational risk (Basic Indicator Approeach) 5.782 586 5.782.586) 3.946.55¢ 3.946.556
Total capital requirements (Pillar 1) 119.889.187 119.889.187 108.616.957] 108.616.957
Pillar 2 Risk (Internal Assessment) 9.600.000 ©.900.000) 9.400.000 9.400.000
Total capital requirements (Pillar 1 + Pillar 2) 129.789.187 129.789.187 118.016.957] 118.016.957
Surplus (+) / Deficit (-) of Own Funds 112083812 75.979.337, 87.751.567 52.459.620
Solvency ratio (%) 16,14 13.73 15,15 12,56
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PART H — RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Accounts with related parties fall within the ordinary operations of the Bank are maintained on an
arin’s length basis and are entered into in the interests of the individual companies concerned. No atypical
or unusual transactions have been entered with such counterparties. Related parties for the purpose hereof
include local strategic management, Parent company, entities of its Group and its Directors and exccutive

officers (and any company owned by them),

Reference is made in the following tables to Parent Bank and other related parties, separately

disclosed as required by 1AS 24.

The amount of balance sheet and off balance sheet’s ilems as at 30 June 2011 and 2010 concerning,

related parties are as follows (in € K):

3/06/2011
Assets and liabilities Other related 30/06/2010
Parent Bank .
parties
Financial assets held for trading 554.888 — 614382
Loans and advances 632.464 — §04.908
Derivatives held for hedging 95.311 — 153.309
QOther assets 6.244 — 11.104
Total assets 1.288.907 — 1.583.703
Financial liabilities held for trading -189.548 — -272.501
Amounts due -2.797 746 — -2.252.300
Debt securities -31.423 -38.329 —
Derivatives held for hedging -16.193 — -20.121
Other Habilities -0.581 -16.288
Total liabilities -3.041.491 -38.329 -2.561.210
30/06/2011
Comprehensive income Parent Bank Other rgl ated 30/06/2010
parties

Interest and similar income -11.289 — 30.085
Interest expenses and similar charges -68.672 — -74.956
Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenscs -22.621 -— -29.891
Net gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities hft -20.736 — -38.346
Net gains and losses from hedge accounting -53.315 — 67.417
Other income 1.137 — —
Administrative expenses -4.797 -413 -704
Total -180.293 -413 -46.395
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30/06/201 1

Guarantees and commitments Other related 30/06/2010
Parent Bank )
parties
Financial guaraniees given — — —
Commercial guarantees given — — —
Irrevocable commitments to disburse funds — — —
Commitments underlying cds: hedpe sales 446.268 — 516.653
Total 446.268 — 516.653

In conncelion with the above activities the Parent Bank provides scveral administrative and
corporate services. [he remuneration of such services is reflected in comprehensive income under caption

“ Administrative Expenses”.

The Bank's incurred in cxpenses with respect to the remuneration of the members of the
administrative, management and supervisory bodies of the Bank are as follows:

Administrative bodies
Key management personnel

30/06/201 ¢ 30/06/2010
25 25

561 293

586 318

The increase of cxpenses for key management personnel is due both to non recurrent amounts
which have been charged during the 1* half year by the Parent Company and to the provisioning of

exlraordinary components as at 3¢ June 2011.

As of 30 June 2011 and 2010, neither advances nor guarantees were granted to Dircclers or Senior
Management. In addition, Directors and Senior Management do not benefit from any pension plan

contributions.

PART I1- OTHER INFORMATION

Audit fees

As of 30 June 2011 and 2010, audit fees are split as follows (in €):

30/06/2011 30/06/2010
Audit fees 86.000 86.000
Audit related fees 17.500 38.930
Other fees 53.000 86.000
Totat 156.500 210.930
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Staff number

As at 30 Junc 2011 and 2010, the Bank s staff is as follows:

30/06/2011 30/06,2010
Management Sentor 2 2
Management-Middle 3 3
Other staff 3 3
Total 8 8

As of 30 June 2011 and 2010, the Bank's Senior Management consists of 2 Managing Directors,
who are not included on the Bank’s payroll. Also, 1 member of the Middlc Management is not included
directly on the Banks payroll but is on secondment from the Parent company.

PART J-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 11 July 2011 the Bank (acting as buyer) has signed a head of terms with Cadogan Joseph 11
S.aR.L. (acting as seller) to purchase via a share deal all the 1.000 shares of Jodewa S.AR.L. a real estate
company having its registered office in Luxembourg. The Bank is carrying out the due diligence process
which is conditional to the completion of the sale, the final share purchasc agreements should be signed in
Septernber. Jodewa S.4R.L. owns the building in which the Bank plans to move its head-office.

'The Bank is not aware of any other adjusting or non-adjusting event that would have occurred
between 30 June 2011 and the date when the present annual accounts were authorized for issue,
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